
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 
SUMMONS 

 

 
Members of Fareham Borough Council are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of 

the Council to be held in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Fareham, on 
WEDNESDAY, 21 JANUARY 2015, commencing at 6.00 pm. 

 

   
The Mayor: Councillor David Norris 

 
The Deputy Mayor: Councillor Michael Ford, JP 

 
Councillor Brian Bayford 

Councillor Susan Bayford 

Councillor Susan Bell 

Councillor John Bryant 

Councillor Pamela Bryant 

Councillor Trevor Cartwright, MBE 

Councillor Peter Davies 

Councillor Marian Ellerton 

Councillor Jack Englefield 

Councillor Keith Evans 

Councillor Geoff Fazackarley 

Councillor Nick Gregory 

Councillor Tiffany Harper 

Councillor Connie Hockley 

Councillor Trevor Howard 

 

Councillor Leslie Keeble 

Councillor Tim Knight 

Councillor Arthur Mandry 

Councillor Kay Mandry 

Councillor Sarah Pankhurst 

Councillor Roger Price, JP 

Councillor Dennis Steadman 

Councillor David Swanbrow 

Councillor Katrina Trott 

Councillor Nick Walker 

Councillor David Whittingham 

Councillor Paul Whittle, JP 

Councillor Christopher Wood 

Councillor Seán Woodward 

 

Public Document Pack



- 2 - 
 

 

1. Prayers  

 The meeting will commence with a short service of prayers.  
 

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 16) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 11 
December 2014.  
 

4. Mayor's Announcements  

5. Executive Leader's Announcements  

6. Executive Members' Announcements  

7. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing 
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct.  
 

8. Presentation of Petitions  

 To receive any petitions presented by a member of the Council. 
 
Note: any petition so presented will be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s 
petition scheme.  
 

9. Deputations  

 To receive any deputations of which notice has been given.  
 

10. Reports of the Executive  

 To receive, consider and answer questions on reports and recommendations of the 
Executive.    
 

(1) Minutes of meeting Monday, 5 January 2015 of Executive (Pages 17 - 20) 

11. Reports of Other Committees  

 To receive the minutes of the following Committees and to consider and answer 
questions on any reports and recommendations made.  
 

(1) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 17 December 2014 of Planning Committee 
(Pages 21 - 30) 

12. Welborne Plan Proposed Modifications (Pages 31 - 110) 

 A report by the Director of Planning and Development.  
 

P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 



- 3 - 
 

 

 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
13 January 2015 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 

Tel:01329 236100 
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk 

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
Tel:01329
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk




 
 

 

 

 
 

Minutes of the 
Council 

 
 
Date: Thursday, 11 December 2014 
  
Venue: Council Chamber - Civic Offices 

 
 

PRESENT:  

D J Norris 
(Mayor) 

 
M J Ford, JP 

(Deputy Mayor) 
 

Councillors: B Bayford, Mrs S M Bayford, Miss S M Bell, J V Bryant, 
Mrs P M Bryant, T  M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies, 
Mrs M E Ellerton, K D Evans, G Fazackarley, N R Gregory, 
Miss T G Harper, Mrs C L A Hockley, T J Howard, L Keeble, 
T G Knight, A Mandry, Mrs K Mandry, Mrs S Pankhurst, 
R H Price, JP, D L Steadman, D C S Swanbrow, 
Mrs K K Trott, N J Walker, D M Whittingham, 
P W Whittle, JP, C J Wood and S D T Woodward 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 
 
 

1. PRAYERS  
 
The meeting opened with prayers led by the Mayor’s Chaplain Reverend Dr 
Ian Meredith from St Mary’s Church in Portchester. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J M Englefield. 
 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the Mayor be authorised to sign as a correct record the 
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 9 October 2014. 
 
 

4. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Mayor advised Members that the next charity event would be the Quiz 
Night at Palmerston Indoor Bowls Club on Saturday 7 February from 7pm. 
Tickets on sale at £15 per head, which includes a 2 course meal. 
 
The next charity tea party would be on Thursday 5 February with the second 
part of a talk by Ray Gibson on Glenn Miller’s time with the Army Air Force 
Band. Tickets for the Tea Parties are £4.00 on the door. 
 
 

5. EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Executive Leader made two announcements regarding the Solent 
Enterprise Zone at Daedalus. The first was to advise Members that the topping 
out ceremony for the new innovation centre, Merlin House, was held last week. 
The Mayor performed the ceremony by tacking up the last piece of 
plasterboard to the wall. 
 
The Executive Leader also confirmed the completion and re-opening of 
runway 05-23 at Daedalus, following the investment of £1.5 million by 
Fareham Borough Council. He reported that the site now has one of the best 
general aviation runways in the country which is fantastic news and is part of 
the Council’s attempts to help create and enable more jobs at Daedalus. The 
innovation centre will create approximately 150 new jobs and there will also be 
a number of jobs created by having a resurfaced runway. 
 
 

6. EXECUTIVE MEMBERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Police and Crime Panel 
The Executive Member for Public Protection advised Members that he had 
attended a briefing held by the Police Crime Commissioner and Hampshire 
Constabulary on the Operational Change Programme.  During the 

Page 2



Council - 3 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

presentation it was announced that all police officers and staff had been 
posted, and the statistics confirmed that 85% of officers obtained their 
preferences, and 85% remained in their geographic location.  These figures 
look quite impressive, but it should be remembered that officers were asked to 
put down three preferences, and it was seen as a success if they only got their 
third preference.   
Regarding the geographic location, this was purely assigning officers to the 
area in which they lived.  Of the 15% who did not achieve their preferences 
(which consists of nearly 300 officers) they had the opportunity to appeal.  
Now this procedure has been completed, there will be an assessment to see if 
there is any effect on crime figures within Hampshire. 
 
The Police and Crime Panel were also briefed on the newly formed Resolution 
Centre which, in its first few weeks, has seen a reduction in demand at the 
front end of Police business.  It was explained that the Police are now only 
dealing with Police business – and not any other areas.  The Executive 
Member for Public Protection was somewhat concerned with this statement, 
and asked whether other local authorities and agencies had been briefed on 
this new initiative, as it will obviously increase their workload.  The reply was 
that, if the call was not Police business, then the Resolution Centre would give 
out the numbers of who should be contacted.  This could obviously have an 
effect on Fareham Borough Council. 
 
At the briefing, the Executive member also met the new Deputy Chief 
Constable, who had been in post for one week and is responsible for this 
Programme.  He discussed the poor communication with the public, both on 
the Operational Change Programme and the Estates Plan.  He agreed that 
this needed to be dealt with as a matter of urgency, and has a requested a 
meeting with the Executive member for Public Protection to move it forward. 
 
Community Safety Partnership 
In his role as Chairman of Fareham’s Community Safety Partnership, the 
Executive member for Public Protection advised that the Council has received 
an invitation from the Police Crime Commissioner to join the Hampshire and 
Isle of Wight Community Safety Alliance.  The invitation has been accepted 
and the quarterly meetings will be attended by the Community Safety Manager 
and the Executive Member for Public Protection.  This Alliance enables the 
Commissioner to hear first-hand the risks, priorities and emerging issues being 
faced by Community Safety Partnerships. 
 
Environmental Health Vanguard Intervention 
The Executive Member for Public Protection announced that the 
Environmental Health Vanguard intervention is progressing well, having looked 
initially at noise issues, it is now being expanded across the rest of 
Environmental Health. Notably, the noise service has moved away from a 
regulatory and enforcement type attitude, to serve a new purpose of “helping 
neighbours live peacefully with each other”. This has resulted in issues being 
resolved within a much shorter time period and with much improved customer 
and neighbour satisfaction. This is being achieved by serving the better 
purpose and by staff adopting a face to face conversation and mediation type 
approach rather than the reliance on formal letters and emails. The knock on 
effect has been to save time and improve job satisfaction for staff. 
 

Page 3



Council - 4 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

 
7. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting. 
 
 

8. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS  
 
A petition of approximately 86 signatures was presented by Councillor G 
Fazackarley entitled: “We, the undersigned, are concerned residents of Kelvin 
Grove who urge our leaders to act now to prevent 40 Kelvin Grove becoming a 
Foster Unit”. 
 
The Mayor advised that the petition would be dealt with in accordance with 
Fareham Borough Council’s petition scheme. 
 
 

9. DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations given at this meeting.  
 
 

10. REPORTS OF THE EXECUTIVE  
 
(1) Minutes of meeting Monday, 6 October 2014 of Executive  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Executive meeting held on 6 
October 2014 be received. 

 
(2) Minutes of meeting Monday, 3 November 2014 of Executive  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Executive meeting held on 3 
November 2014 be received. 
 

(3) Minutes of meeting Monday, 1 December 2014 of Executive  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Executive meeting held on 1 
December 2014 be received. 
 

(4) Schedule of Individual Executive Member Decisions and Officer 
Delegated Decisions  

 
RESOLVED that the Schedule of Individual Executive Member 
Decisions and Officer Delegated Decisions be received. 

 
11. REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY BOARD  

 
(1) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 20 November 2014 of Scrutiny Board  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Scrutiny Board held on 20 
November 2014 be received. 

 
 

Page 4



Council - 5 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

12. REPORTS OF OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
(1) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 24 September 2014 of Planning 

Committee  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 24 
September 2014 be received. 

 
(2) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 22 October 2014 of Planning 

Committee  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 22 
October 2014 be received. 

 
(3) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 19 November 2014 of Planning 

Committee  
 

RESOLVED that: 
 

(a) the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 19 November 2014 
be received; and  

 
(b) the recommendations contained in minute 6 regarding the Spending 

Plans 2015/16 be agreed. 
 
(4) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 23 October 2014 of Streetscene Policy 

Development and Review Panel  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Streetscene Policy Development 
and Review Panel held on 23 October 2014 be received. 

 
(5) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 4 November 2014 of Planning and 

Development Policy Development and Review Panel  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Development Policy 
Development and Review Panel held on 4 November 2014 be received. 

 
(6) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 5 November 2014 of Leisure and 

Community Policy Development and Review Panel  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Leisure and Community Policy 
Development and Review Panel held on 5 November 2014 be received. 

 
(7) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 11 November 2014 of Public Protection 

Policy Development and Review Panel  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Public Protection Policy 
Development and Review Panel held on 11 November 2014 be 
received. 

 
(8) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 13 November 2014 of Health and 

Housing Policy Development and Review Panel  
 

Page 5



Council - 6 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health and Housing Policy 
Development and Review Panel held on 13 November 2014 be 
received. 

 
(9) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 18 November 2014 of Licensing and 

Regulatory Affairs Committee  
 

RESOLVED that:  
 
(a) the minutes of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee held 

on 18 November 2014 be received; 
 
(b) the recommendations contained in minute 6 regarding the Review 

of Polling Districts and Polling Places be agreed; and 
 
(c) the recommendations contained in minute 8 regarding the Spending 

Plans 2015-16 be agreed. 
 
 

13. QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 17.2  
 
There were nine sets of questions submitted for this meeting: 
 
Question by Councillor N R Gregory: 
 
1. “Would the Leader, on behalf of the Conservative group, give the 

rationale of their decision when allocating positions on decision making 
committees for independent Councillors, why two of us have three 
positions on working decision making committees when Councillor Wood 
has only one? 

 
I have spoken to Councillor Wood and I would like to request your 
consideration to swapping my position on Licensing and Regulatory 
Affairs Committee for his position on Appeals. 
I feel this would stop the perception of discrimination of a Councillor or 
his party from being actively involved in decision making process within 
this Council and the Committees of this Council. 
Furthermore, I feel this move would positively demonstrate a move for 
more diplomacy to the democratic process of this Council.  Also giving 
each Independent Councillors a fair share of committees whom have the 
powers to make decision that affect the residents of this Borough. 
However, if you can explain why this decision of yours is sound and 
should stay the way it is, I would be happy to listen?” 
 

Verbal Response by the Executive Leader:  
 
1. The allocation of seats to committees is not the Conservative Group’s 

decision – it is for the Council to determine and this was done at the 
Annual meeting in May.  Each of the political groups is entitled to a 
certain number of seats on committees. This is based upon their 
percentage representation on the Council as a whole and is in 
accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

 

Page 6



Council - 7 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

To assist the Council in this matter and in exercise of powers delegated 
to him, the Chief Executive Officer consults the leaders of the political 
groups prior to the meeting, with a view to agreeing the allocation of 
seats for the municipal year. Group Leaders are requested to provide 
nominations to the places on committees to which their respective groups 
are entitled. The nominations of political groups to seats on committees 
are set out in a tabled paper at the meeting and the Council is invited to 
confirm the allocation of seats for the next municipal year.  However, if 
the Council is asked to consider alternative arrangements in appointing 
the committees and those arrangements do not comply with the 
provisions requiring political balance, members are reminded that such 
alternative arrangements would require the support of the Council with no 
member voting against. 

 
There are three independent councillors in this Council who are not 
members of any political group. There is no legal entitlement calculation 
to committee places for an independent member however, following the 
calculations and allocation of seats to political groups, the Council may if 
it chooses appoint the non-group members to any seats not otherwise 
allocated. In doing this, the Council may allocate seats from those 
committees requiring a balancing adjustment. Therefore, the allocation of 
seats to independent Councillors is at the gift of the Council and is not an 
automatic allocation. 
 

Question by Councillor N R Gregory: 
 
2. “Will the Executive Leader please tell us what is the correct amount of 

savings achieved by Vanguard per annum and for this year? 
At the Scrutiny Board meeting on the 25th September 2014 members are 
informed through the report that the amount was £168,000 per annum, 
however you stated recently in local media the actual figure is around 
£300,000 per year. 
To make another £132,000 in just a few months is most remarkable, or 
are the printed figures incorrect (if this is the case should we not request 
a correction in the local press to avoid misleading the public)? 
Councillor Woodward, can you also explain how these saving are 
calculated, and where they are recorded for the general public to view?” 
 

Verbal Response by the Executive Leader: 
 
2. Contrary to Councillor Gregory’s insinuations throughout the Vanguard 

process, we have been clear and transparent to both Councillors and the 
public, regarding the substantial savings made from redesigning our 
services through the eyes of the customer. 

 
Progress reports presented to both the Scrutiny Board and the Executive 
first identified savings of £59,000 in December 2013 and a further 
£109,000 in October 2014.  Both these reports were public.  We also 
issued a press release at the time of the second report to help ensure 
residents were kept up date with progress and the savings made.           

 
Since then, further savings have been identified as a result of more 
Vanguard interventions.  A public report to this Full Council clearly 

Page 7



Council - 8 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

outlines how a restructure of the Building Services team will provide 
savings of £88,000 per annum, whilst a restructure of the Parking team 
will provide £75,000 per annum. Plans are currently being put together 
for a restructure of the Benefits team which should generate at least 
£50,000 in savings.  

 
The combined total of savings made since starting the Vanguard method 
therefore stands at £381,000 per annum.  We will continue to keep 
Councillors and the public informed about further savings made as we 
undertake more Vanguard interventions. 
 

Question by Councillor N R Gregory: 
 

3. “Would the Executive Leader please explain the details behind the 
decision for this Council to form a partnership with a private limited 
company and Eastleigh Council without the involvement of any decision 
making committees? 
 
(a) Why was this partnership not raised within any decision making 

committee like Audit and Governance, Scrutiny and Health and 
Housing before Executive made their decision, I fully understand it is 
the right of the Executive to make this decision within this. However, 
common courtesy and respect of other elected Councillors do you 
not feel it would have been the correct thing to do?  

(b) Is it correct that this Council’s involvement in creating a new private 
development company will open up the possibility of developing 
housing outside of the Affordable housing system, and outside of the 
Right to buy system for this Council? 

(c) Why was there no consultation with the public on this matter? 
Especially given that public money will be used to fund some of the 
projects that this company gets involved in, also considering the 
Regulation stated below? 

 
Current; Regulation 21: External Arrangements; States 21.1.7  
Significant Partnerships: Any partnership assessed as “Significant” In 
accordance with FBC Framework for Partnership Working must also 
demonstrate the following arrangements; 

 Procedures for dealing with Conflicts of interest 

 Annual review of membership and opportunity to select 

Chairman 

 Risk Management Arrangements 

 Performance framework with measureable outcomes 

 Consultation with Local Community and Complaints Procedures 

(d) In what way will this new company be involved in Welborne and the 
construction of housing on this site if it is found Sound? 

 
(e) How will the residents of this Borough and this Council see a return 

on any investment of public monies through this company? 
Considering that any assets or profit this company achieves through 
properties built or rent charged will be held on the company “Balance 
Sheet and HMRC returns””   

 

Page 8



Council - 9 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

Verbal Response by the Executive Leader: 
 

3. Clearly it has escaped Councillor Gregory that the Executive is a decision 
making committee.  It considered two reports on this subject; firstly at its 
meeting in July 2013, then a further, detailed report, was considered at 
its meeting in November 2013. This explained clearly the reasons why 
the Council were considering being part of a joint venture company to 
facilitate housing and economic development in the borough. 
 
The stated objectives are to:- 
• meet housing need in its core areas of operation in partnership with 

other organisations 
• bring forward housing developments that may otherwise stall due to 

economic conditions. 
• increase housing supply in order to meet local housing needs. 
• increase the supply of market rented housing to overcome local 

shortages. 
• provide housing accessible to those in receipt of welfare benefits. 
• boost the local economy through development, creating work in 

construction and a range of other industries. 
• develop projects aimed at reducing carbon emissions and/ or 

increasing renewable energy usage. 
 
The decision was made by the appropriate decision-making body, in 
public session, and was not raised by the Scrutiny Board, of which 
Councillor Gregory was a member, as an item of Executive Business that 
it wanted to consider further.  
 
The housing joint venture provides the Council with another vehicle to 
deliver much needed affordable housing in the borough which any 
reasonable councillor would welcome but not it seems Councillor 
Gregory.  At the moment, the option to develop new council housing is 
severely constrained by central government rules around borrowing.  The 
Council is actively building new sheltered accommodation within the 
limited capacity it does have available, and we are making use of Right to 
Buy receipts to acquire general needs housing off-the-shelf.  But until the 
rules change and in the absence of the Joint Venture company, the 
Council could only develop more homes by waiting until sufficient money 
had accumulated in the Housing Revenue Account.  The Joint Venture 
(registered as “Aspect Building Communities Ltd”) allows the Council to 
respond promptly and still retain some control over affordable housing 
delivery. 
 
The primary purpose is to deliver affordable housing.  These properties 
would not be “Council housing”, and are not therefore subject to the 
same legislation (such as the right to buy); but they would be owned by 
the joint venture and managed by a registered provider (such as a 
housing association or the Council) and the Council would have an equity 
stake in them.  Affordable housing developed by the JV would also be 
allocated to those in need, on the waiting list. 
 
The creation of the company did not warrant a public consultation 
exercise, as it is effectively a shell company with very limited assets or 

Page 9



Council - 10 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

liabilities.  However, as with any development proposals, there will be the 
appropriate level of public consultation as schemes are worked up and 
brought forward.  The public funding involved in the joint venture was set 
out in the Executive reports and is extremely limited (to minimal running 
costs only).  There is no commitment to invest significant amounts of 
capital in the joint venture, and any such plans would need formal 
approval by the Executive. 
 
Every development scheme that comes forward will require a separate, 
individual set of approvals by the Housing Company Board and by the 
Council (if it is a funder or “share-holder” in the development subsidiary 
of the Joint Venture). 
 
Of course Welborne will have a large quantum of affordable housing, but 
as previously stated, there are no commitments to invest in specific 
development schemes. 
 
Any “return on investment”, whether financial or otherwise, will be clearly 
documented when an investment decision is being considered by the 
Executive. 
 

Question by Councillor N R Gregory: 
 

4. “Would the Executive Leader agree with me that the rule under the Local 
Government Act on proportional representation within our Scrutiny Board 
is failing the democratic process when there is only one sitting Councillor 
on the Board from the opposition? 
How can true debate and diplomacy be up held in this Committee with 
only one opposition Councillor, when consideration is given to party 
whipping of other Councillors of the same party? 
For accountability, transparency and to promote true diplomacy would 
you not agree with me, our Authority (FBC) should be putting pressure of 
the Government to have this rule changed for committee’s like Scrutiny?  
Current position of the Scrutiny Board is 9 elected members of which 8 
members belong to the Conservative Party, of which controls all the 
Executive seats.  
This is the only decision making Board / Committee which can hold the 
Executive members or any other decision within this Council to account. 

 
Please don’t say that Party whipping doesn’t go on within your party, and 
yes I fully understand that any Councillor can address the Board with 
their views or opinions but this is not the same as a seat in the decision 
making process.” 
 

Verbal Response by the Executive Leader: 
 

4. No, I do not agree. Each of the political groups is entitled to a certain 
number of seats on committees and this is based upon their percentage 
representation on the Council as a whole and is in accordance with the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  
The electorate of Fareham has returned 24 councillors in the 
Conservative Group of which of course Councillor Gregory was one until 
he went off to form an Independent Group then to join UKIP then to be an 

Page 10



Council - 11 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

independent. That is over 77% of the Council, with 4 Liberal Democrats 
which is 10%. It would therefore be against the wishes of the electorate 
to change the balance of proportionality. I remind him that there is no 
entitlement applicable to an independent member. 
 
The issue of whipping is covered by the Council’s Constitution which 
states that: “In the interests of openness and accountability, Members will 
be expected to disclose, at the commencement of all Scrutiny Board or 
Policy Development and Review Panel meetings, any advice or 
directions received from their Group Leader or their Political Group, on 
the views to be expressed on a particular issue or on the way that they 
should vote. The Chief Executive Officer will be responsible for ensuring 
that the minutes of the meetings record all such disclosures”. 
 
I can confirm that, counter to Councillor Gregory’s assertion there is no 
whipping of Conservative members on any committee, board or panel of 
this Council. 
 

Question by Councillor N R Gregory: 
 

5. (a) “Councillor Sean Woodward, would you be considering resigning 
your position as Leader of this Council, if the two planning policies 
which are under public scrutiny are found to be Un-Sound? 

 
(b) It is felt by many, including yourself through statements you have 

made in Local Media that an Un-Sound Verdict would open Pandora 
’s Box for developers submitting planning applications right across 
the Borough. Should this happen, would you not agree it could result 
in a breakdown of confidence from our residents in this Council’s 
ability to run this Borough? 

 
(c) You have stated in many CAT meetings and through the local media 

that Welborne would stop all other developments within the Borough 
which would not be the case. Also stated by you, until all the monies 
are in place for the infrastructure at Wellbore “Not a brick will be laid”. 
Would you not agree, that these statements are un-sound and not 
within your power to control?  

 
(d) Councillor Woodward, do you not feel the WEL5 planning Policy for 

only a 50m Strategic gap or Settlement Buffer as explained in this 
policy for Welborne will support the Newlands development between 
Longfield Avenue and Stubbington? (Page1 Par1)The Welborne Plan 
Issue 3. Looking at Appendix 1 on Page 6 if 50m is all that is needed 
for a Strategic Gap I have real concerns over not just Welborne, 
Newlands Development but many others throughout this Borough? 

 
(e) Cllr Woodward, why is this Council under your direction going into 

Partnership to form a Construction Company to build houses within 
Fareham Borough, when you stated Welborne Development would 
stop all other developments within Fareham and meet the housing 
needs of the Borough? 

 

Page 11



Council - 12 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

My reasoning for asking this question is that as the Leader, you have put 
yourself forward has the champion for Welborne, promoting the legacy of 
this development with the aspiration that this would stop all future 
development within the Borough. I feel that you have taken this Council 
forward with no form of contingency plan should an un-sound verdict is 
given by the Government inspector. 
Furthermore, you have expressed your own opinion through Local Media 
on other Councillors within this Council that you feel they should resign 
their position for what I consider far lesser failings in carrying out their 
duties under their roles has Borough Councillors than are stated above.” 
 

Verbal Response by the Executive Leader: 
 

5. (a)  No 
 
(b) No 
 
(c) No 
 
(d) No 
 
(e) The Council has established Aspect Building Communities Limited (a 

local housing company) in partnership with First Wessex Housing 
Association, Radian Housing Association and Eastleigh Borough 
Council for the sole purpose of increasing investment in and delivery 
of new affordable housing.  

 
The Council’s Housing Revenue Account is subject to a borrowing 
cap imposed by the Government which restricts our ability to fund the 
delivery of new affordable homes in the borough. The new housing 
company will have access to alternative sources of funding which will 
help increase the supply of new affordable homes in the borough. I 
anticipate this company will play a significant role in the delivery of 
new affordable homes in Welborne and possibly on some smaller 
redevelopment sites within Fareham as and when the opportunities 
present themselves.  Any development undertaken by Aspect 
Building Communities Limited in Fareham will be subject to the 
normal planning policies and process. 
 
Finally Councillor Gregory is disingenuous to claim that I have stated 
that Welborne would stop all future development in the Borough.  I 
have never stated any such thing and have always pointed out to 
residents that we have allocated land in the remainder of the 
Borough outside Welborne for over 3,000 homes of which the great 
majority are either already built of have planning consent which is 
why we did not need to allocate sites for many more.  Furthermore I 
have also stated that the land we have allocated for housing 
including Welborne has meant we have not had to allocate housing 
in our strategic gaps which most of us want to protect. 

 

Page 12



Council - 13 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

Question by Councillor P J Davies: 
 

6. Use of bed and breakfast accommodation by Fareham Borough Council 
(a) Can the Leader advise how many residents, for whom FBC has 

accepted housing responsibility, were accommodated in bed and 
breakfast accommodation in the last 12 months? 

 
(b) Can the Leader advise the average length of stay in bed and 

breakfast accommodation? 
 
(c) Can the Leader advise of the areas in which the bed and breakfast 

accommodation is located? 
 
(d) Can the Leader advise how many residents, for whom FBC has 

accepted housing responsibility, will be in bed and breakfast 
accommodation or temporary private rented accommodation this 
Christmas? 

 
Response by the Executive Member for Health and Housing: 
 
6. (a)  The Housing Options Team took 190 applications between 1 

December 2013 and 30 November 2014; of these 63 were accepted 
and of these, 14 households have spent some time in Bed & 
Breakfast accommodation. 

   
(b) Average length of stay is 39 days 
 
(c)  The bed and breakfast accommodation used have been located in 

three areas: 
Titchfield, 
Southsea, 
Gosport 

 
(d)  There is currently one accepted homeless applicant in bed and 

breakfast accommodation; two other households are in B&B but a 
decision on their application has not yet been reached; all three 
applicants are single people. Whilst we cannot predict the demand 
on our service we hope to avoid having any families in bed and 
breakfast over Christmas period. 

 
As at 5 December, 31 accepted homeless households were in 
private sector leased accommodation and a further 10 are housed in 
an equivalent scheme run by a local housing association partner. 
Average length of time in such accommodation is between 6 & 18 
months.   
All 41 households are expected to be in these least properties over 
the Christmas period. 
 

Page 13



Council - 14 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

Question by Councillor P J Davies: 
 

7.  Pedestrian routes within Fareham Town Centre: 
(a) Is the Leader aware that encouragement of the use of public 

transport and walking are amongst the corporate priorities of 
Fareham Borough Council? 

 
(b) Can the Leader advise how to walk from Fareham Civic Offices or 

Ferneham Hall to West Street and to the Bus Station, when Fareham 
Shopping Centre is closed? 

 
Response by the Executive Member for Planning and Development: 
 
7. (a)  Yes 
 

(b)  There are presently four alternative routes. However, it is 
acknowledged that when the Shopping Centre is closed, the most 
direct route through the Centre is not available to the public.  It is for 
this reason that there is a specific policy (Policy DSP29: Fareham 
Shopping Centre Improved Link) proposed in the Development Sites 
and Policies Plan, that was submitted to the recent examination for 
consideration by the Inspector, which seeks to address this issue.  
This proposed Council policy seeks to improve the links between the 
Henry Cort area and the Civic Area through supporting 
redevelopment proposals that provide a more readily available and 
direct route, or routes, between these two areas. 

 
Question by Councillor C J Wood: 
 
8. Could the Executive Member please inform the Chamber how much 

money Fareham Borough Council has spent on the Christmas 
decorations in Fareham Town Centre compared to Stubbington Village 
Centre please? 

 
Verbal Response by the Executive Leader: 
 
8. The Council has spent no money on the Christmas decorations provided 

in either Fareham town centre or Stubbington village centre; the 
decorations provided in Fareham are provided by the Fareham Town 
Centre Management Partnership. 

 
Question by Councillor C J Wood: 
 
9. Could the Executive Member please inform the Chamber how many 

Traffic Regulation Orders can be implemented each year across the 
Fareham Borough please? 

 
Response by the Executive Member for Public Protection: 
 
9. Fareham Borough Council deals with Traffic Regulation Orders as part of 

an agency agreement with Hampshire County Council, who provide 
funding for the work. In 2013-14, the total allocation from HCC was 
£15,500. This includes provision for new signage and line markings, 

Page 14



Council - 15 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

including the marking of disabled bays. The cost of each scheme varies 
but in a typical year, this funding is sufficient to implement approximately 
ten schemes. 

 
Each year, a traffic management programme is considered by the Public 
Protection Policy Development and Review Panel for the Executive to 
approve. 

 
14. MOTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 15  

 
(1) Notice of Motion received 27 November 2014 from Councillor Mrs Trott  
 

Motion proposed by Councillor Mrs K K Trott: 

“I propose that Fareham Borough Council resolves to write tothe 

Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to confirm 

that the Council believes that the Government’s Right to Buy Policy 

represents poor value for money and that Local Authorities should be 

given the option to suspend the Right to Buy Policy in their local areas.” 

 

The Mayor advised that as the subject of the motion comes within the 

terms of the Executive, then the motion would stand referred without 

discussion to an appropriate meeting of the Executive. 
 

15. LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2015/16  
 
RESOLVED that the Council approves: 
 
(a) the Council Tax Support scheme, as recommended by the Executive at 

the meeting of 1 December 2014; and   

(b) that delegated authority is given to the Director of Community to make 
any necessary minor amendments and to publish the final scheme prior 
to 1 April 2015. 

 
16. APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES  

 
There were no changes to appointments to committees made at this meeting. 
 

17. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
RESOLVED that the Council agrees to appoint Councillors Mrs M Ellerton and 
Mrs S M Bayford as representatives to the Genesis Advisory Committee. 
 

18. PAY AND GRADING REVIEW  
 
During a debate on the item, Councillor C J Wood proposed the following 
amendment to recommendation (a): 
 
“The pay award for mainstream employees, as detailed in paragraphs 17 and 
18 of this report, and accepts an amendment in place of Paragraph 19 which 
reads “Then, in order to increase pay equality within Fareham Borough 
Council, and save money, it is proposed that all mainstream pay-scales would 
be increased by a further £885. As well as making the Council’s employment 

Page 15



Council - 16 - 11 December 2014 
 

 

package more competitive, (and just below the median for the South East), 
this would re-establish a gap between the national minimum wage and the 
lowest point of the Council’s pay structure, as detailed in Appendix 7.” 
 
The proposed Appendix 7 calculations were tabled at the meeting.  
 
Having been duly seconded by Councillor P W Whittle, JP and on being put to 
the meeting following further debate, Councillor C J Wood requested a 
recorded vote.  
The amendment was declared LOST, there being 4 votes in favour 
(Councillors N R Gregory, Mrs K K Trott, P W Whittle, JP and C J Wood) and 
25 votes against (Councillors B Bayford, Mrs S M Bayford, Miss S Bell, J V 
Bryant, Mrs P Bryant, T M Cartwright, P J Davies, Mrs M Ellerton, K D Evans, 
G Fazackarley, M Ford, Miss T G Harper, Mrs C L A Hockley, T J Howard, L 
Keeble, T G Knight, A Mandry, Mrs K Mandry, Mrs S Pankhurst, R H Price, JP, 
D L Steadman, D C S Swanbrow, N J Walker, D Whittingham, and S D T 
Woodward), with 1 member abstaining from voting (The Mayor). 
 
On the substantive motion being put to the meeting following further debate, 
Councillor S D T Woodward requested a recorded vote.  
The motion was declared CARRIED, there being 28 votes in favour 
(Councillors B Bayford, Mrs S M Bayford, Miss S Bell, J V Bryant, Mrs P 
Bryant, T M Cartwright, P J Davies, Mrs M Ellerton, K D Evans, G 
Fazackarley, M Ford, N R Gregory, Miss T G Harper, Mrs C L A Hockley, T J 
Howard, L Keeble, T G Knight, A Mandry, Mrs K Mandry, Mrs S Pankhurst, R 
H Price, JP, Mrs K K Trott, D L Steadman, D C S Swanbrow, N J Walker, D 
Whittingham, P W Whittle, JP and S D T Woodward), no members voting 
against and 2 members abstaining from voting (The Mayor and Councillor C J 
Wood). 
 
RESOLVED that the Council approves: 

 
(a) the pay award for mainstream employees, as detailed in paragraphs 17 

to 19 of this report; 
 
(b) the pay award for senior management employees, as detailed in 

paragraphs 20 to 23 of this report; 
 
(c) that the senior management pay structure is amended from three grades 

to four grades, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report;  
 
(d) that the updated Pay Policy statement for 2015/16, as set out in 

Appendix 3 to the report be agreed; and 
 

(e) that the costs of the pay awards be funded from the savings accrued 
through the implementation of the Vanguard Method. 

 
 

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm 
and ended at 8.36 pm). 

 
 

Page 16



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes of the 
Executive 

 

(to be confirmed at the next meeting) 

 
Date: Monday, 5 January 2015 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 
Present:   
 S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader) 

T  M Cartwright, MBE, Public Protection (Deputy Executive 
Leader) 
B Bayford, Health and Housing 
K D Evans, Planning and Development 
Mrs C L A Hockley, Leisure and Community 
L Keeble, Streetscene 

 
Also in attendance: 
 
Mrs S M Bayford, Chairman of Streetscene Policy Development and Review Panel 
Miss S M Bell, Chairman of Leisure and Community Policy Development and Review 
Panel 
Mrs P M Bryant, Chairman of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee 
Mrs M E Ellerton, Chairman of Health and Housing Policy Development and Review 
Panel 
A Mandry, Chairman of Planning and Development Policy Development and Review 
Panel 
D C S Swanbrow, Chairman of Scrutiny Board 
N J Walker, Chairman of Planning Committee; for item 10(2) 
Mrs K K Trott, for item 8(1) 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 10(1)



Executive - 2 - 5 January 2015 
 

 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies given for this meeting. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 1 
December 2014 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

3. EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
There were no Executive Leader’s announcements made at this meeting. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting. 
 

5. PETITIONS  
 
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting. 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations received at this meeting. 
 

7. MINUTES /  REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
There were no references made from other committees. 
 

8. HEALTH AND HOUSING  
 
 
(1) Award of Contract - Construction of Six Passivhaus Homes at Coldeast 

Sarisbury  
 
At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed 
the Executive on this item. 
 
RESOLVED that the Executive: 
 

(a) notes the level of grant funding secured from the Homes and 
Communities Agency to support delivery of the project; 

 
(b) approves a revised budget of £1,000,000 in light of the funding 

secured and the costs of construction confirmed by the tender; and 
 
(c) authorises the Director of Community to enter into contract with 

Interserve Construction Limited to complete the proposed 
development. 

 
 

9. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT  

Page 18



Executive - 3 - 5 January 2015 
 
 
 
(1) Titchfield Village Parking Review  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive supports the proposal and recommendations to 
change the parking arrangements in Titchfield Village Centre, and approves 
that: 
 

(a) for The Square, to introduce 8 extra spaces restricted to 30-minute 
parking (no return within one hour) between 8am and 6pm Monday to 
Sunday, resulting in a total of 13 spaces with this restriction; and in 
addition to convert one space in the south-western corner of The 
Square to motor-cycle parking only; 

(b) for Barry’s Meadow Car Park, to withdraw existing parking permits for 
business users previously issued for this car park; 

(c) for Titchfield Community Centre Car Park, to re-arrange the internal 
layout of the car park to create an estimated 25 to 30 extra parking 
spaces; and 

(d) the effectiveness of the schemes detailed in recommendations (a) (b) 
and (c) be reviewed after one year. 

 
 

10. POLICY AND RESOURCES  
 
 
(1) Finance Strategy, Capital Programme, Revenue Budget and Council 

Tax  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees: 
 

(a) that the capital programme for the period 2014/15 - 2018/19, amounting 
to £33,176,000 be approved; 

 
(b) that the revised 2014/15 general fund budget, amounting to £9,516,100  

be approved; 
 
(c) that the base 2015/16 general fund revenue budget amounting to 

£9,120,200 be approved; and 
 
(d) that the use of the surplus on the spending reserve as set out in 

paragraphs 30-32 be approved. 
 
 
(2) Community Fund Application - Adrian Stannard  
 
At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor N J Walker addressed the 
Executive on this item. 
 
RESOLVED that the Executive approves the application for funding submitted 
by Mr Adrian Stannard for £9,250.00 and agrees that it is taken from Fareham 
Borough Council’s Community Funding Programme. 

Page 19



Executive - 4 - 5 January 2015 
 
 

11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 the 
Public and Press be excluded from the remainder of the meeting, as the 
Executive considers that it is not in the public interest to consider the matters 
in public on the grounds that they will involve the disclosure of exempt 
information, as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

12. POLICY AND RESOURCES  
 
 
(1) Irrecoverable Debts  
 
RESOLVED that the debts listed in Appendix A to the report, be written off as 
irrecoverable. 
 
 

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm 
and ended at 6.28 pm). 

 
 

Page 20



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes of the 
Planning Committee 

 

(to be confirmed at the next meeting) 

 
Date: Wednesday, 17 December 2014 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 

PRESENT:  

 Councillor N J Walker (Chairman) 
 

 Councillor A Mandry (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors: B Bayford, T  M Cartwright, MBE, K D Evans, M J Ford, JP, 
D C S Swanbrow, L Keeble (deputising for P J Davies) and 
Mrs K K Trott (deputising for R H Price, JP) 
 

 
Also 
Present: 

Councillor Mrs P M Bryant (item 6 (9) 
 

 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 11(1)



Planning Committee - 2 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies of absence were received from Councillors R H Price, JP and P J 
Davies. 
 

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 19 
November 2014 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
There were no chairman’s announcements. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
In accordance with Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct the 
following members declared an interest in the applications referred to:- 
  

Name Application 
Number/Site 

Minute Number 

Councillor Cartwright P/14/1021/FP – 185 
Warsash Road 
  
P/1022/FP – 185 
Warsash Road 

6 (3) 
  
  
6 (4) 

Councillor Ford -Ditto- 
  
-Ditto- 

-Ditto- 
  
-Ditto- 

Councillor Mrs Trott P/14/1074/CU – 7 Brook 
Lane 

6 (8) 

Lee Smith – Head of 
Development Manager 

TPO No 700 – 35 
Ranvilles Lane 

7 

      

  
 

5. DEPUTATIONS  
 
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the 
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly. 
  

Name Spokesperson 
representing 
the persons 

Subject Supporting 
or Opposing 
the 

Minute No/ 
Application 
No/Page No 

Page 22



Planning Committee - 3 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

listed Application   

          

ZONE 1 - 3.15         

Mr I Goodrige   Car Park, Locks 
Heath Shopping 
Centre, Fareham – 
Change of use of a 
part of a car park to a 
car valeting business 
with associated 
removable canopy, 
portacabin and fence 
  

Supporting Item 1 
P/14/0813/CU 
Page 14 

Mr R Appleby Mr & Mrs Neaves 
Mr and Mrs 
Marsh 
Mr and Mrs Merry 
Mr and Mrs 
Norman 
Mr and Mrs Davis 
Mr and Mrs 
Livingstone 

185 Warsash Road, 
Warsash – Two 
storey side 
extension, new roof 
and dormer windows 
over existing single 
storey structure, 
replacement 
garage/carport and 
elevation 
improvements 
  

Opposing Item 3 
P/14/1021/FP 
Page 23 

Mr R Tutton 
(Agent) 

  -ditto- Supporting -ditto- 

Mr R Appleby Mr & Mrs Neaves 
Mr and Mrs 
Marsh 
Mr and Mrs Merry 
Mr and Mrs 
Norman 
Mr and Mrs Davis 
  

185 Warsash Road, 
Warsash – Erect a 
three bedroom 
detached dwelling 
with carport and 
parking 

Opposing Item 4 
P/14/1022/FP 
Page 27 

Dr H Pandya Mr & Mrs Neaves 
Mr and Mrs 
Marsh 
Mr and Mrs Merry 
Mr and Mrs 
Norman 
Mr and Mrs Davis 
  

-ditto- -ditto- -ditto- 

Mr R Tutton 
(Agent) 

  -ditto- Supporting -ditto- 

Mr L Lloyd   7 Brook Lane, 
Warsash – Change 
of use from retail to 
café (use class A3) 
  

Supporting Item 8 
P/14/1074/FP 
Page 46 

ZONE 2 - 4.30         

Page 23



Planning Committee - 4 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

Mr V Thorne 
(Agent) 

  31 Funtley Hill, 
Fareham – Double 
car port (barn style) 
to front elevation 
  

Supporting Item 9 
P/14/0996/FP 
Page 52 

Mr A Willcocks   59 Miller Drive, 
Fareham – Two 
storey/first floor side 
extension 
  

Opposing Item 10 
P/14/1046/FP 
Page 56 

Mr R Tutton 
(Agent) 

  Highland Fisheries, 
1C Fareham Park 
Road – Side 
extension 
  

Supporting Item 11 
P/14/1048/FP 
Page 59 

ZONE 3 - 4.30         

  
 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 
INCLUDING AN UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS  
 
The Committee noted a report by the Director of Planning and Development 
on development control matter applications and miscellaneous matters, 
including information on Planning Appeals. An Update Report was tabled at 
the meeting. 
 
(1) P/14/0813/CU - LOCKS HEATH SHOPPING CENTRE - CAR PARK 

FAREHAM HANTS  
 
The Committee received the deputation referred to in minute 5 above. 
  
A motion was proposed and seconded that the officer recommendation be 
changed to planning permission being granted for a temporary period of one 
year rather than 3 years. Upon being put to the vote the motion was 
CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to conditions in the report, TEMPORARY 
PLANNING PERMISSION be granted for 1 year. 
 
(2) P/14/1010/FP - 30 EASTBROOK CLOSE PARK GATE 

SOUTHAMPTON SO31 7AW  
 
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and 
CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 

Page 24



Planning Committee - 5 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

(3) P/14/1021/FP - 185 WARSASH ROAD WARSASH SOUTHAMPTON 
SO31 9JE  

 
The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above. 
  
Councillor’s Cartwright and Ford declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item 
as one of the deputees is known to them. 
  
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which provided 
the following information: - The applicant has commissioned a Phase 1 
Ecology survey in relation to the existing bungalow; if there is no evidence 
found of bats found then it is recommended that the decision be delegated to 
officers to issue. In the event that bats are found and a Phase 2 survey is 
required then officers will bring the application back to Planning Committee. 
  
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer’s recommendation to grant 
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report and the prior 
submission of a bat survey and its approval by Fareham Borough Council, was 
voted on and CARRIED. 
(Voting: 7 in favour; 2 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(4) P/14/1022/FP - 185 WARSASH ROAD WARSASH SOUTHAMPTON 

SO31 9JE  
 
The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above. 
  
Councillors Ford and Cartwright declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item 
as one of the deputees is known to them. 
  
A motion was proposed and seconded to refuse the application. Upon being 
voted on the motion was CARRIED. 
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against; 1 abstention) 
  
 RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED. 
  
Reason for Refusal: 
The proposed development is contrary to Policy CS17 of the adopted Fareham 
Borough Core Strategy and is unacceptable in that: 
  
i). by virtue of the plot size, the size and siting of the proposed house and the 
narrow driveway providing a tandem parking arrangement along the southern 
side of the property, the development would give rise to a form of development 
which is cramped in appearance, detrimental to the character and visual 
amenities of the area. 
 
(5) P/14/1028/FP - 14 DANEHURST PLACE LOCKS HEATH 

SOUTHAMPTON SO31 6PP  
 
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission, was voted on and CARRIED. 

Page 25



Planning Committee - 6 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(6) P/14/1045/OA - WARSASH ROAD - LAND TO REAR OF 66 & 66A - 

WARSASH SO31 9JA  
 
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
outline planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted 
on and CARRIED. 
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, OUTLINE PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(7) P/14/1047/TO - 33 HAZEL GROVE LOCKS HEATH SOUTHAMPTON 

SO31 6SH  
 
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
consent, was voted on and CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; o against) 
  
RESOLVED that CONSENT be granted to reduce overhanging branches on 1 
Monterey Cypress protected by Tree Preservation Order 693. 
 
(8) P/14/1074/CU - 7 BROOK LANE WARSASH SOUTHAMPTON SO31 

9FH  
 
The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above. 
  
Councillor Mrs K K Trott declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item, as the 
deputee is known to her. 
  
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which provided  
the following information: - One further comment has been received objecting 
to the application on the grounds that: 
-The proposal will cause more people to park in the bus stop and cause 
disruption. 
- It would reduce the percentage of A1 uses in the area. 
  
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and 
CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(9) P/14/0996/FP - 31 FUNTLEY HILL FAREHAM HAMPSHIRE PO16 

7EP  
 
The committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above. 
  

Page 26



Planning Committee - 7 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs P M Bryant addressed the 
Committee on this item. 
  
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
permission, subject to the additional condition that there is no infilling permitted 
on the car port, was voted on and CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to an additional condition that prevents the sides of 
the permitted car from being infilled, PLANNING PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(10) P/14/1046/FP - 59 MILLER DRIVE FAREHAM HAMPSHIRE PO16 

7LY  
 
The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above. 
  
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and 
CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(11) P/14/1048/FP - HIGHLAND FISHERIES 1C FAREHAM PARK ROAD 

FAREHAM HAMPSHIRE PO15 6LA  
 
The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above. 
  
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which provided 
the following information:- The applicant has submitted revised drawings 
showing the whole frontage of the unit, including both the proposed extension 
and the existing shop front, set back approximately 300mm. this set back 
would leave enough room for a parking space 4.8 metres in length on the 
hardsurfaced forecourt in front of the extension to be retained with access via 
the existing dropped kerb. 
  
Following these revisions the Director of Planning & Development (Highways) 
has made the following comments: 
With the retention of a car parking space at the front of this unit, no highway 
objection is raised. 
  
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and 
CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Planning Committee - 8 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

(12) P/14/1030/FP - 27 COTTES WAY HILL HEAD  
 
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and 
CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that , subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING 
PERMISSION be granted. 
 
(13) P/14/1089/TC - 74 CASTLE STREET, PORTCHESTER  
 
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant 
consent to fell one lime tree in Castle Street Conservation Area, was voted on 
and CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that CONSENT be granted to fell one lime tree in the Castle 
Street Conservation Area. 
 
(14) Planning Appeals  
 
The Committee were informed of several errors in the planning appeals report, 
page 72 P/14/0341/FP the recommendation should read ‘permission’, and 
page 72 P/13/1045/FP the recommendation should also read ‘permission’. 
  
The Committee noted to the information contained in the report. 
 
(15) UPDATE REPORT  
 
The Update Report was tabled at the meeting and considered with the 
relevant agenda item. 
 

7. TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO 700 - 35 RANVILLES LANE, 
TITCHFIELD  
 
The Head of Development Management declared a non-pecuniary interest in 
this item on the grounds of proximity as 35 Ranvilles Lane is located very 
close to his own property and he left the room for the remainder of this item. 
  
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Planning and 
Development regarding not confirming Tree Preservation Order 700 to which 
an objection (in respect of a provisional order made in October 2014) had 
been received. 
  
A motion was proposed and seconded that Tree Preservation Order No 700 
not be confirmed as made as served. Upon being put to the vote the motion 
was CARRIED. 
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against) 
  
RESOLVED that Tree Preservation Order No 700 not be confirmed as made 
and served. 
 

Page 28



Planning Committee - 9 - 17 December 2014 
 

 

 
(The meeting started at 3.15 pm 

and ended at 5.44 pm). 
 
 

Page 29





 

 
 

Report to 
Council 

 
 
 
Date 21 January 2015  
 
Report of: Director of Planning and Development 
 
Subject: Welborne Plan Proposed Modifications   
 
 
 

SUMMARY 

The hearing sessions, which formed part of the Welborne Plan Examination, closed 
in October 2014.  Following the hearing sessions, the Inspector has issued his 
Preliminary Findings letter, which is set out as Appendix A to this report.  This is part 
of the Examination process, which is still underway.  The Inspector has indicated a 
number of areas of the Plan, relating to soundness, which the Council should 
address through the agreement of Main Modifications.  In addition, Officers have 
identified a number of potential Minor Modifications which would improve the legibility 
and effectiveness of the document.  This report sets out all of the proposed 
Modifications which are proposed to be published for public representations.  This is 
an important step in moving towards receiving a final Inspector‟s Report on the Plan 
and subsequent decision regarding the adoption of the Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION 

(a) that the proposed Main Modifications and Minor Modifications to the Local Plan 
Part 3: Welborne Plan, as set out in Appendix B, be published for a six-week 
representation period commencing on 26 January and concluding on 9 March 
2015, together with supporting documents including a supplementary 
addendum to the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulation Assessment 
Reports; 

(b) that the Director of Planning and Development, in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Planning and Development, be authorised to make any 
necessary minor amendments to the proposed Main and Minor Modifications to 
the Plan, prior to publication for representations, provided that these do not 
change the overall direction, shape or emphasis of the documents, and do not 
raise any significant new issues; 

(c) that the Director of Planning and Development, in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Planning and Development, be authorised, following the 
completion of the subsequent representation period, to submit the proposed 

Page 31

Agenda Item 12



 
Modifications to the Secretary of State together with full details of all 
representations received, along with a request under section 20(7) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 for the Inspector to recommend 
to the Council Modifications to the Plan that would make it sound; 

(d) that the Director of Planning and Development, in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Planning and Development, be authorised to make any 
necessary minor amendments to the proposed Main and Minor Modifications to 
the Plan, prior to submission to the Inspector, provided that these do not 
change the overall direction, shape or emphasis of the documents, and do not 
raise any significant new issues; and 

(e) that the proposed Modifications to the Local Plan Part 3: Welborne Plan, be 
endorsed as interim guidance to be afforded due weight in the determination of 
planning applications. 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

 INTRODUCTION 

1. Further to the Council resolution of 13th February 2014, the Publication draft Welborne 
Plan was published for a period of public representations and submitted to the 
Secretary of State for Examination by an independent Inspector to consider whether the 
Plan has been prepared in accordance with the Duty to Cooperate, legal and procedural 
requirements, and whether it is sound. 

2. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that for a Plan to be “sound”, it 
should be: 

 Positively prepared – the plan should be prepared based on a strategy which seeks to 
meet objectively assessed development and infrastructure requirements, including 
unmet requirements from neighbouring authorities where it is reasonable to do so and 
consistent with achieving sustainable development; 

 Justified – the plan should be the most appropriate strategy, when considered against 
the reasonable alternatives, based on proportionate evidence; 

 Effective – the plan should be deliverable over its period and based on effective joint 
working on cross-boundary strategic priorities; and 

 Consistent with national policy – the plan should enable the delivery of sustainable 
development in accordance with the policies in the NPPF. 

3. Following submission of the Plan, a series of Examination Hearings took place, 
commencing on the 15th October and concluding on the 23rd October 2014.  The 
Inspector has now considered the Plan and its associated supporting documents, 
representations made on the submitted Plan, the discussions at the hearing sessions 
and the subsequent written material submitted by the Council and other parties.  He has 
now issued his preliminary findings letter based on the evidence he has read and heard. 

4. This report sets out actions following the Inspector‟s preliminary findings letter, which 
have been published on the Council‟s website and included as Appendix A to this 
report. 

 WELBORNE PLAN – EXAMINATION HEARINGS 

5. At the Examination Hearings, the Inspector indicated a number of areas where he 
considered the Plan would need to be changed before it could be considered sound.  
Under the direction of the Inspector, as part of the Examination process, Council 
Officers prepared a number of documents in response to his concerns which were 
published on the Council‟s website during and after the Examination Hearings.  These 
were the subject of a further two week informal consultation, undertaken on behalf of 
the Planning Inspector, where all parties who had made a representation on the 
Welborne Plan were invited to respond.  Those responses were forwarded to the 
Inspector for his consideration before he issued his preliminary findings letter. 

PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 

6. The Inspector‟s preliminary findings letter identifies a number of points relating to 
soundness which the Council should address through the agreement of Main 
Modifications.  These all concern issues where the Inspector has already indicated to 
Officers at the Examination Hearings that a change to the Plan was required.  Therefore 

Page 33



 

in each case a response to the required change has already been drafted by Officers at 
the Inspector‟s request and informally consulted upon on his behalf. 

7. Main Modifications are a common feature in Local Plan Examinations.  The Borough‟s 
Core Strategy was also subject to Modifications prior to it being deemed sound in 2011.  
It should be noted that the proposed Main Modifications do not concern the overarching 
vision for Welborne, but address issues of how the Plan may be made sound. 

8. In total, 23 modifications are listed by the Inspector.  They include –  

 A commitment to a Review of the Local Plan; 

 The allocation of a single site for a secondary school close to the District Centre; 

 Directing the provision of the new Household Waste Recycling Centre in the 
employment area in the southern part of the site to the west of the A32, rather than 
leaving the location undetermined; 

 Production of a new Phasing Plan to be included within Chapter 10 of the Plan;  

 Removal of references to the deferral of infrastructure provision; and  

 Clarification regarding monitoring and review. 

9. Following the Inspector‟s Preliminary Findings, the Council now need to consider the 
proposed Modifications to the Plan in order to proceed with the next stage of the 
Examination process. 

 MODIFICATIONS TO THE PLAN 

10. As outlined in paragraph 4 above, for each of the proposed Main Modifications to the 
Plan identified by the Inspector, an amendment to the Plan has been drafted.  In 
addition, during the course of the Examination Officers have identified a number of 
additional, more minor areas where the Plan could be improved by changes which do 
not relate to “soundness” but nonetheless improve the Plan, which are referred to as 
proposed Minor Modifications.  These include changes arising as a consequence of the 
proposed Main Modifications, updates, minor amendments to the supporting text and 
other changes which the Inspector has determined would not constitute Main 
Modifications.  Both the proposed Main Modifications and proposed Minor Modifications 
are set out in Appendix B to this document. Appendix B therefore contains all of the 
proposed changes to the text of the Welborne Plan. 

11. In addition, Appendix C to this Report sets out the revised Strategic Framework 
Diagram and Policies Map resulting from the Inspector‟s Main Modification regarding 
the allocation of a single site for a secondary school close to the District Centre.  These 
diagrams are proposed to form Appendix B.2 and B.3 of the Welborne Plan 
respectively. 

12. Finally, Appendix D to this report contains an addendum to the Sustainability Appraisal 
and Habitats Regulations Assessment to the Welborne Plan as revised by the proposed 
Main Modifications. 

 

Page 34



 

NEXT STEPS 

13. Should Members endorse these changes, then both the proposed Main Modifications 
and the Minor Modifications to the Plan set out in Appendix B will be published for public 
representations commencing on 26 January and concluding on 9 March 2015. 

14. Following the period of representations the Council must forward all representations 
received, a brief response to the submissions received, including potentially any 
additional changes, along with a short commentary on any implications of the Main 
Modifications in terms of the sustainability appraisal, to the Inspector.  The Council may 
then issue the Inspector with a formal request under section 20(7C) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) for him to recommend Modifications to 
the Welborne Plan that would make it sound. 

15. Following that, the Inspector will finalise his report and confirm what changes to the 
Plan are required to make the Plan sound.  These changes will be reported back for 
Member approval before the Plan can be adopted. 

 RISK ASSESSMENT 

16. If the Council decides not to proceed with the proposed Modifications as directed by the 
Inspector then the Welborne Plan will not be found sound.  Failure to deliver a sound 
Welborne Plan would mean that the vision for development in the Borough, as set out in 
the adopted Core Strategy would not be completed.  

17. The Welborne Plan is required to set out the expectations of the Council and other key 
bodies when considering future planning applications for Welborne, expected later this 
year.  In addition to determining applications at Welborne, an up to date planning 
strategy will assist the Council is resisting unnecessary and undesirable development 
elsewhere in the Borough.  

 RECOMMENDATION 

18. That the following recommendations be considered by Council: 

(a) that the proposed Main Modifications and Minor Modifications to the Local Plan 
Part 3: Welborne Plan, as set out in Appendix B, be published for a six-week 
representation period commencing on 26 January and concluding on 9 March 
2015, together with supporting documents including a supplementary addendum 
to the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulation Assessment Reports; 

(b) that the Director of Planning and Development, in consultation with the Executive 
Member for Planning and Development, be authorised to make any necessary 
minor amendments to the Main and Minor Modifications to the Plan, prior to 
publication for further representations, provided that these do not change the 
overall direction, shape or emphasis of the documents, and do not raise any 
significant new issues; 

(c) that the Director of Planning and Development, in consultation with the Executive 
Member for Planning and Development, be authorised, following the completion of 
the representation period, to submit the proposed modifications to the Secretary of 
State together with full details of all representations received along with a request 
under section 20(7) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 for the 
Inspector to recommend Modifications to the Plan that would make it sound; 

Page 35



 

(d) that the Director of Planning and Development, in consultation with the Executive 
Member for Planning and Development, be authorised to make any necessary 
minor amendments to the proposed Main and Minor Modifications to the Plan, 
prior to submission to the Inspector, provided that these do not change the overall 
direction, shape or emphasis of the documents, and do not raise any significant 
new issues; and 

(e) that the proposed amendments to the Local Plan Part 3: Welborne Plan, be 
endorsed as interim guidance to be afforded due weight in the determination of 
planning applications. 

 
  

Page 36



 

Appendices: 

Appendix A:  Inspector‟s Preliminary Findings on the Welborne Plan (Welborne Plan 
Examination document reference ID-18) 

Appendix B:  Proposed Modifications to Welborne Plan Submission Version 

Appendix C:  Revised Strategic Framework Diagram and Policies Map as amended by 
Main Modification MM9 

Appendix D:  Addendum to the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulations 
Assessment for the Welborne Plan 

 

Background Papers: 

None. 

 
Reference Papers: 

Welborne Plan Examination Documents 

 

1. Welborne Plan Examination Documents - CD-08 Fareham Borough Council Statement 
on Inspector Issue 1 – The Duty to Co-operate, Legal Requirements and the Relationship 
between the LP3, LP2, the Core Strategy and other Planning Documents (September 2014) 

2. CD-09 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 2 - The Vision, 
Objectives and Development Principles for Welborne (WEL1 and WEL2) (September 2014) 

3. CD-10 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 3 - Site, Setting, 
Allocations, Design Principles and Character Areas (WEL3 to WEL8) (September 2014) 

4. CD-11 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 4 - Economy and Self-
Containment (WEL9) (September 2014) 

5. CD-12 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 5 - District Centre, 
Local Centre and Community Hub (WEL10 to WEL13) (September 2014) 

6. CD-13 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 6 - Education, 
Community and Health Facilities (WEL14 – WEL16) (September 2014) 

7. CD-14 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 7 - Transport, Access 
and Movement (WEL23 – WEL28) (September 2014) 

8. CD-15 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 8 - Green 
Infrastructure, Biodiversity and Landscape (WEL29 – WEL35) (September 2014) 

9. CD-16 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 9 - Energy, Water and 
Waste (WEL36 – WEL40) (September 2014) 

10. CD-17 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 10 - Homes and 
Affordable Housing (WEL17 – WEL22) (September 2014) 

11. CD-18 Fareham Borough Council Statement on Inspector Issue 11 - Delivering the 
New Community including Viability, Monitoring and Review (WEL41 – WEL43) (September 
2014) 

12. CD-32 Action arising from hearing session - Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Commitment to review Local Plan (October 2014) 

Page 37



 

13. CD-33 Action arising from hearing session - Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Treatment of A32 and definition of Design Principles (October 2014) 

14. CD-34 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Monitoring community engagement (October 2014) 

15. CD-35 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Secondary School (October 2014) 

16. CD-36 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Phasing (October 2014) 

17. CD-38 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Settlement Buffers and Strategic Design Codes (November 2014) 

18. CD-39 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Consultations with Health Organisations and Emergency Services (November 2014) 

19. CD-40 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Transport Modelling, Transport Evidence and the A32 (November 2014) 

20. CD-41 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Allotments, Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace and Eastern Boundary Treatment 
(November 2014) 

21. CD-42 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Energy, Water Supply and Disposal, Flooding and Sustainable Drainage Systems and the 
Household Waste Recycling Centre (November 2014) 

22. CD-43 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Affordable Housing and Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople (November 2014) 

23. CD-44 Action rising from hearing session – Fareham Borough Council Statement on 
Phasing Plan and Monitoring and Review of the Welborne Plan (November 2014) 

24. CD-45Final List of Additional Material arising from the Welborne Plan Examination 
hearing sessions (November 2014) 

25. CD-46 Further Submission on Actions Arising from the Hearing Sessions (December 
2014) 

26. ID-17 Further Questions from Inspector on Actions Arising from the Welborne Plan 
Hearing Sessions (December 2014) 

27. SD01 – Fareham Borough Local Plan Part 3: The Welborne Plan Submission Version 
June 2014 

28. CD03 - Suggested Change to Welborne Plan Submission Version: Additional 
Alternative Location for Secondary school: Summary of Representations and Council‟s 
Response 

 
 
Enquiries: 

For further information on this report please contact Claire Burnett (Ext 4330) or Toby Ayling 
(Ext 4816) 
  

Page 38



 

Appendix A 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FAREHAM LOCAL PLAN PART 3: THE WELBORNE PLAN MAIN 
MODIFICATIONS 
 

INSPECTOR’S PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 
 

 
 

This note is without prejudice to any final Report that I may prepare but based on the 

evidence that I have read and heard I consider there are a number of shortcomings  in 

the document, relating to soundness, which the Council should address through the 

agreement of Main Modifications (MMs).  They all relate to issues that were discussed at 

the Hearings and are summarised in the table below: 
 
 
 

 Policy/Para Modification To Meet 

Soundness 

Criteria: 

    
MM1 Para 1.29 Commitment to a Review of the 

Local Plan 

Consistent   with 

national policy 

MM2 WEL2 New first bullet point and 

amendment to the 6th bullet point 

(4th sub-bullet) in relation to 

emphasising the relationship 

between Welborne and Fareham to 

the south 

Justified 

MM3 WEL5 Clarification regarding consideration 

of settlement buffers 

Justified 

MM4 WEL6 Add a criterion relating to noise, 

light pollution and air quality 

Justified 

MM5 WEL6 Take measures to ease 

pedestrian/cycle movement across 

the A32 

Justified 

MM6 WEL7 Clarification regarding strategic 

design codes 

Justified 

MM7 Para 5.17 Clarification regarding the Council’s 

approach towards office 

development 

Justified 

MM8 WEL10 and 

WEL11 

Clarification regarding Impact 

Assessments for retail and leisure 

development 

Justified 

MM9 WEL16 Allocate a single site for a 

secondary school close to the 

District Centre 

Justified 

MM10 WEL18 Clarification regarding affordable 

housing provision 

Effective 

MM11 WEL23 Promote development that looks to Justified 

  the  south  for  its  main  highway 

links 

 

Page 39



 

MM12 Para 7.24 Introduction  of flexibility regarding 

access links to the A32 

Justified 

MM13 Para 7.27 Clarification regarding traffic 

management on the A32 

Justified 

MM14 WEL25 Clarification regarding principal 

access being from the south 

Justified 

MM15 WEL29 Clarification regarding allotment 

provision 

Positively 

prepared, 

justified and 

effective 

MM16 WEL33 (as 

set out in 

CD-46) 

Structural planting including the 

protection of long-distance views 

including from Portsdown Hill 

Justified 

MM17 WEL36 Clarification regarding optimising 

energy efficiency 

Positively 

prepared, 

justified and 

effective 

MM18 WEL37 Clarification regarding water 

efficiency, supply and disposal 

Justified 

MM19 WEL39 Clarification regarding flood risk 

and sustainable drainage systems 

Effective 

MM20 WEL40 Allocation of a site to the west of 

the A32 for a household waste 

collection centre 

Effective 

MM21 WEL41 and 

supporting 

text 

New phasing plan Effective 

MM22 WEL41 Remove references to the deferral 

of infrastructure provision 

Justified and 

effective 

MM23 Para 11.5 

and 11.6 

Clarification regarding monitoring 

and review 

Effective 

 

 
 

Following consultation on the MMs the Council should send me a copy of the 

submissions received; a brief response to those submissions and a short commentary 

on any implications of the MMs in terms of the sustainability appraisal. 

 
There are a small number of other changes being proposed by the Council (following the 

hearing sessions) but they are minor in nature and therefore not before me for 

consideration. 

 
On this basis I am therefore inviting the Council, once it has considered the responses 

to the consultation on the MMs, to make a formal request under section 20(7C) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) for me to recommend 

Modifications to the plan that would make it sound. 
 

Da v i d  H o g g e r 
 
Inspector 
 

22nd December 2014 

 
 

Page 40



 

 

 

 
Appendix B 

 

This appendix comprises a schedule of all changes that are proposed to the Welborne Plan Submission Version (June 2014) (Welborne 
Examination Document Reference SD01).  The changes proposed in this document have arisen through the Council‟s Statements on the 
Inspector‟s Issues and Questions, through discussion during the Examination Hearing sessions and through the Council‟s responses to 
the Inspector‟s request for Additional Material.  Both Part A and Part B of this schedule identify the source of the change in the „Reason 
for Change‟ column. 
 
This appendix comprises: 
 

 
Part A – Main Modifications 
 

 
Part B – Minor modifications 

 
This part comprises any changes to the Plan considered necessary 
to enact the Main Modifications identified by the Inspector in his 
Preliminary Findings letter. All of these changes will be considered 
as part of the Examination and will be subject to a six-week period 
for Public representations commencing 26 January 2015. 
 

 
These are additional modifications to the Plan which do not directly 
relate to “soundness” but nonetheless improve the Plan.  They 
include changes arising as a consequence of the proposed Main 
Modifications, updates, minor amendments to the supporting text 
and other changes which the Inspector has determined would not 
constitute Main Modifications.  For clarity, these have been 
recorded and published and will also form part of the six-week 
period for Public representations commencing 26 January 2015.  
The additional modifications include a large number of changes to 
Chapters 6, 10 and 11.  To aid clarity, those modifications are set 
out in Parts B1, B2 and B3 of this Appendix.  

 
All changes are shown as additional text underlined and deleted text struck through. 
  

P
age 41



 

Part A – Main Modifications 
This part comprises any changes to the Plan considered necessary to enact the Main Modifications identified by the Inspector in his 
Preliminary Findings letter. All of these changes will be considered as part of the Examination and will be subject to a six-week period for 
Public representations commencing 26 January 2015. 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

MM1 
 

Page 8, 
Paragraph 
1.29 
 

PUSH has committed to undertake a review and update of the South 
Hampshire Strategy, to take account of the most up-to-date background 
evidence, including the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), 
and to extend the timeline of the Strategy to 2036. At their meeting of 25th 
March 2014, the PUSH Joint Committee resolved to commence a 
proposed programme of work on the update commencing in April 2014, 
with publication of the final Strategy predicted for early 2016. The Council‟s 
commitment to an early review of the Local Plan is reiterated in the Local 
Development Scheme. 
 
The Council is committed to review the Local Plan, and this is set out in the 
Council‟s Local Development Scheme (Revised September 2014), which 
was agreed at Fareham Borough Council‟s Executive Meeting on the 1st 
September 2014.  The Council‟s timetable for the Local Plan Review allows 
the Authority to take account of the current review of the South Hampshire 
Strategy. The timetable for the review of the Local Plan is as follows:   
 

 Summer 2016 – Consultation on Draft Plan (Regulation 18) 

 Summer 2017 – Publication of Proposed Submission Plan (Regulation 
19) 

 Autumn 2017 – Submission to Secretary of State (Regulation 22) 

 Winter 2017 – Examination (Regulation 24) 

 Spring/Summer 2018 – Adoption of Local Plan (Regulation 26) 
 
The Local Plan review undertaken by the Council will be comprehensive in 
nature, updating and reviewing the adopted Core Strategy, Development 

To provide 
commitment to a 
review of the 
Borough‟s Local 
Plan. 
 
 

Discussed during 
the Issue 1 
hearing session 
and subsequently 
proposed by the 
Council in Actions 
Arising Statement 
CD-32. 
 

P
age 42



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

Sites and Policies and Welborne Plans together, to form one Local Plan.  

MM2 
 

Page 20, 
Policy 
WEL2, 1st 
bullet & 
6th  bullet 
point 

Insert a new 1st bullet point in WEL2: 
 

 The new development through its location, layout, housing and 
employment offers, transport links and social, economic and 
environmental aspects will form a functional part of Fareham and 
the wider South Hampshire area; 

 
Amendment to the 6th bullet point (4th sub-bullet): 
 

 Based on the revised Transport Strategy, t The following key 
principles apply in relation to transport: 
○ To support the sustainability of the new community, the aim 

will be to create high levels of self-containment; 
○ The development will address a significant proportion of trips 

through the development of robust reduce and manage 
policies; 

○ Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) will form a key component of the 
access strategy; 

○ Access will be principally to / from the south via the A32 and 
junction 10 of the M27; 

○ The rate of development will be linked to the funding and 
provision of the necessary transport infrastructure; 

○ Carefully designed transport interventions will minimise the 
traffic impacts on the local and strategic road network and 
mitigate any environmental impacts; 

To emphasise the 
relationship 
between Welborne 
and Fareham to 
the south 

Proposed in the 
Council’s Further 
Actions Arising 
Statement CD-46.  
 
Proposed in the 
Council’s Actions 
Arising Statement 
CD-40. 

MM3 Page 38-
39, Policy 
WEL5 
 

Insertion of clarification text below paragraph 2 of Policy WEL5 
  
Planning applications will be accompanied by site sections through 
the respective settlement buffers to demonstrate that the visual and 

To provide 
clarification on 
settlement buffers 
to decision-makers 

Proposed in the 
Council’s Further 
Actions Arising 
Statement CD-46. 

P
age 43



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

physical separation will be achieved.  The width of the settlement 
buffers in each case shall be no less than stipulated below and 
should be increased to a width of no less than 75 metres in the 
following circumstances: 

i. Where development located immediately adjacent to a 
settlement buffer is greater than 2-storeys or 8.5 metres in 
height; 

ii. Where noise-generating uses are proposed to be located 
immediately adjacent to a settlement buffer or; 

iii. Where a 50 metre wide settlement buffer would not enable a 75 
metre separation between buildings in Welborne and buildings 
within a neighbouring settlement. 

and applicants as 
to when a 
settlement buffer of 
more than 50 
metres may be 
required. 

MM4 
 

Pages 44-
45, Policy 
WEL6 

Insertion of additional criterion to end of list: 
 
v.  the issues of noise, light pollution and air quality have been 

considered in developing proposals, and shall set out the 
measures necessary to mitigate any likely impacts. 

To ensure noise, 
light and air 
pollution impacts 
are sufficiently 
considered in the 
design principles 
for Welborne. 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement Issue 3 
CD-10 

MM5 Pages 44-
45, Policy 
WEL6 

Amendment to criterion iii. of Policy WEL6: 
 
iii.  The layout and design will help to create safe well-connected 

neighbourhoods, and have particular regard for ensuring that 
proposals maximise opportunities to prioritise pedestrian and 
cyclist movement across the A32; 

To reflect the 
importance of 
pedestrian/cycle 
movement across 
the A32. 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-33. 
 

MM6 Pages 46-
47, Policy 
WEL7 

Amendment to 1st, 3rd and 4th paragraphs of policy WEL7: 
 
Strategic design codes shall be prepared by the site promoters, to 
cover at least the areas within their own control. The strategic design 
codes shall be submitted for approval by the Council either, 

To clarify the 
process and 
triggers for 
reviewing the 
Strategic Design 

Discussed during 
the Issue 3 
hearing session 
and subsequently 
proposed in the 

P
age 44



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

accompanying initial outline, reserved matters or detailed planning 
applications or alongside any applications for detailed consent or 
reserved matters for the relevant phase or development.  Where the 
strategic design codes are not submitted with initial outline planning 
applications, high-level development principles shall be submitted 
with the Structuring Plan, in accordance with the Welborne Design 
Guidance Supplementary Planning Document.   
 
Planning permission will be granted for subsequent applications 
proposals which are broadly in accordance with the design principles 
set out within the Welborne Strategic Framework, the relevant 
comprehensive masterplan and the strategic design codes. The 
Design and Access Statement which accompanies planning 
applications for each phase of the development shall clearly set out 
how the relevant sections of the strategic design codes approved 
with the initial applications have been complied with. 
 
The strategic design codes shall be subject to review and revision, as 
required by the Local Planning Authority, throughout the course of 
the development period to ensure that they remain up to date and 
relevant, and to ensure that they support and do not harm the 
deliverability of each development phase. 

Codes. 
 
 

Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-38. 

MM7 
 

Page 54, 
Paragraph 
5.17 

Addition to end of paragraph 5.17: 
 
However, if office proposals come forward on any of the land allocated for 
employment uses earlier than anticipated, they will be supported from the 
outset, provided that the proposals are otherwise in accordance with the 
Plan. 

To clarify the 
approach towards 
office provision.  
 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement on 
Inspector Issue 4 
CD-11. 
 

MM8 
 

Page 61, 
Policy 

Amendment to 6th paragraph (Policy WEL10): 
 

To provide clarity 
on how impact 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 

P
age 45



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

WEL10 - 
6th 
paragraph 
 
 
 
 
Page 63, 
Policy 
WEL11 - 
4th 
paragraph 

The scale and type of retail and leisure development at the District 
Centre shall be appropriate to the centre‟s function and position 
within Fareham‟s retail hierarchy of centres.  All retail and leisure 
development proposals will require an impact assessment to 
demonstrate that they can comply with policies within the Local Plan 
and that they do not adversely impact on Fareham Ttown Ccentre or 
Wickham centre. 
 
Amendment to 4th paragraph (Policy WEL11): 
 
Robust iImpact assessments shall be undertaken to accompany 
planning applications for all retail and leisure proposals to 
demonstrate that they will not give rise to significant adverse impacts 
on Fareham‟s Town Centre or Wickham‟s centre and range of 
services proposed at the Local Centre will be consistent with the role 
of the Local Centre and its place within Fareham‟s hierarchy of 
centres serve to complement the function of Welborne‟s District 
Centre and will not adversely complete with it or with Wickham‟s 
centre. 

assessments for 
retail and leisure 
will be assessed. 
 
 

Statement on 
Inspector Issue 5 
CD-12. 
 

MM9 
 

Page 74, 
Policy 
WEL16 

Amendment to Policy WEL16 to allocate a single site for a secondary site: 
 
One minimum 7 form entry secondary school shall be provided on a 
site of at least 9 hectares at the broad location adjacent to the new 
district centre in the west of Welborne as indicated on the Fareham 
Policies Map and on Appendix B.3 of this plan. 
 
The school shall be phased to enable an initial intake of pupils by the 
end of Main Phase 3, or as agreed with the Council in consultation 
with Hampshire County Council as Local Education Authority.  In the 
period prior to the first intake at the Welborne School, site promoters 
shall work positively with Hampshire County Council to ensure that 

To reflect the 
Inspector‟s advice 
to allocate a single 
location for the 
Secondary School 
close to the District 
Centre. 
 
 

Initial 
amendments 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement on 
Inspector Issue 6 
CD-13. Policy 
discussed further 
during the Issue 6 
hearing session 
with the 
subsequent 

P
age 46



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

the capacity at surrounding schools is sufficient to meet the needs of 
Welborne, including contributing to the delivery of temporary 
additional capacity, where required by the Welborne development.   
 
The secondary school site shall be: 

i. Large enough to enable appropriate landscaping to minimise 
the visual impact of the school into the Knowle Triangle and 
Knowle itself; Designed and laid out to ensure it is well related 
to the district centre, in a sympathetic manner taking into 
account surrounding uses and constraints; 

ii. Well and safely connected to new and existing pedestrian and 
cycle routes, including to Welborne's green corridor network; 

iii. Provided with or in very close proximity to bus stops for 
conventional bus services and for BRT; 

iv. Be transferred by the developers to Hampshire County Council 
or to the relevant education provider at the time agreed with the 
Council and in a form consistent with the relevant site transfer 
requirements. 

 
Detailed proposals for the school‟s layout shall ensure that all of the 
school buildings can be accommodated within the plan boundary.  
The intended uses within Knowle Triangle shall be consistent with the 
role of that land as a settlement gap between Welborne and Knowle, 
as set out within Winchester City Council‟s Local Plan Part 1. 

changes 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-35. 
 

MM10 
 

Page 81, 
Policy 
WEL18 

Clarification of Policy WEL18 regarding affordable housing provision: 
 
WEL18 – Affordable Housing 
 
Development at Welborne shall provide a total of 30% affordable 
housing. (approximately 1,800 homes) with an initial tenure split of 
70% affordable or social rent and 30% intermediate tenures.  The 

To remove 
reference of JVHC 
from policy and 
provide clearer 
guidance on 
Council‟s approach 
to delivering 

Initial 
amendments 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement on 
Inspector Issue 
10 CD-17. Policy 

P
age 47



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

tenure split will be kept under review based on evidence of need. 
 
Each residential phase of development shall be expected required to 
meet the target of 30% affordable housing provision unless a robust 
and transparent viability appraisal proving this not to be possible is 
accepted by the Council. 
 
In exceptional circumstances where viability considerations require, 
the minimum affordable housing numbers on any phase will be 10% 
(subject to viability and the implications for other infrastructure) and 
the maximum required will not normally exceed 40%. 
 
Where it is agreed that a residential phase will not meet the 30% 
target of affordable housing, the subsequent phase or phases will be 
expected required to meet that shortfall in addition to the 30% target 
if possible in viability terms. 
 
The initial tenure split will be 70% affordable or social rent and 30% 
intermediate tenures. The tenure split will be kept under review phase 
by phase based on evidence of need and viability. 
 
A range of affordable housing types, sizes and tenures shall be 
delivered within each residential phase. The precise number and mix 
of affordable homes within each phase shall be agreed with the 
Council, having regard to the nature of the phase to be developed, 
and the identified need for affordable homes and its viability at the 
time the phase comes forward. 
 
Approximately 15% of all affordable homes delivered within each 
phase of the development shall be designed to meet higher 
accessibility standards equivalent to the Lifetime Homes standards. 

affordable housing. 
 
 

discussed further 
during the Issue 
10 hearing 
session with the 
subsequent 
changes 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-43. 
 P

age 48



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

The precise proportions shall reflect evidence of need demand at the 
time the phase comes forward and will be subject to the need to 
ensure that the phase remains economically viable. 
 
Planning permission will be granted for affordable homes that are 
integrated with the market housing, within the overall limits set out 
below, and are designed and will be constructed to the same or 
higher standards. Affordable housing may be clustered in small 
groups. 
 
Each residential phase of development shall be expected to meet the 
target requirements (set out in the first paragraph of this policy) 
unless a robust and transparent viability appraisal proving this not to 
be possible is accepted by the Council.  In such cases, the Council 
will consider alternative delivery mechanisms including the Joint 
Venture Housing Company (JVHC).  Where such alternative delivery 
mechanisms are not viable, feasible or desirable, flexibility may be 
applied to the target level requirements within this policy, consistent 
with the Council‟s deferral of contributions policy (See WEL41 and 
the Welborne Planning Obligations SPD).  Where a case for deferral is 
accepted, the absolute minimum level of affordable housing within 
any residential phase of development will be 10%. 
 
Where an agreed deferral of affordable housing results in any 
residential phase of the development not meeting the „normal‟ target 
requirements of this policy, subsequent phases will be expected to 
provide affordable housing deferred from the previous phase(s).  This 
will be in addition to meeting that phase‟s own normal „target‟ 
provision, but will be subject to an overall maximum level of 40% of 
the housing within any one phase being delivered as affordable 
housing.  

P
age 49



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

 

MM11 
 

Page 92, 
Policy 
WEL23 - 
item iii. 

Amendment to criterion iii. to promote development that looks to the south 
for its main highway links: 
 
iii. Achieves a development which is southwards-facing in transport 

terms through the masterplan layout and delivery of access via 
the A32 and an improved junction 10 of the M27; 

 

To ensure that the 
Plan promotes 
development that 
looks to the south 
for its main 
highway links. 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-40 
and Further 
Actions Arising 
Statement CD-46. 

MM12 
 

Page 94, 
Paragraph 
7.24 - 1st 
sentence 

Amendment to 1st sentence: 
 

The spine streets will use Knowle Road as the northern edge of a network 
box. This access will link back to the A32 at 4 a number of locations 
(including Knowle Road / A32 junction). 

To introduce 
flexibility regarding 
access links to the 
A32. 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement on 
Inspector Issue 7 
CD-14. 

MM13 
 

Pages 94-
95, 
Paragraph 
7.27 – list 
item 1.  

Amendment to the final sentence of item 1. to provide clarification 
regarding traffic management on the A32: 
 

It is likely that junction signals will be required. Whilst some works may be 
required at this junction to discourage additional traffic movements 
travelling north through Wickham, it may be more appropriate to manage 
this additional demand through traffic management measures in the town 
centre and appropriate measures will need to be identified and locally 
agreed. 

To clarify traffic 
management 
measures for the 
A32    

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement on 
Inspector Issue 7 
CD-14. 

MM14 
 

Page 97, 
Policy 
WEL25 - 
1st 
sentence 
 

Amendment to the 1st paragraph to provide clarification regarding the 
principal access being from the south: 
 
The principal vehicular access to Welborne will be from the south via 
the A32 and junction 10 of the M27. 

To clarify that the 
principal vehicular 
access to 
Welborne will be 
from the south. 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-40. 

P
age 50



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

MM15 
 

Page 106, 
Policy 
WEL29 - 
table 

Amendment to allotment row in table to provide clarification regarding 
allotment provision: 
 

Type of open 
space of GI 

Minimum standard 
(per 1,000 
population) 

To include 

Allotments 0.34 0.13 hectares   
 

To correct error in 
allotment provision. 
 
 

Discussed in the 
Issue 8 hearing 
session and 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-41. 

MM16 
 

Page 114, 
Policy 
WEL33 

Insertion of additional paragraph after the 1st paragraph  to confirm how 
structural planting schemes will be expected to protect long-distance views, 
including from Portsdown Hill:  
 
Structural landscaping schemes will show how they respond 
positively to areas of high landscape quality to the north and east of 
the site and take into account any material impact on long distance 
views of the site from Portsdown Hill to the east and across the site 
from the south.  

To provide further 
clarity over the 
expected 
protection for areas 
of high landscape 
sensitivity and 
long-distance 
views (Portsdown 
Hill). 
 
 

Discussed in the 
Issue 8 hearing 
session and 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-41 
and Further 
Actions Arising 
Statement CD-46. 

MM17 
 

Page 117, 
Policy 
WEL36 

Amendment to criteria ii. to provide clarification on optimising energy 
efficiency: 
 
ii. Achieve high energy efficiency standards for all buildings, 

including meeting the Passivhaus Standard if appropriate; and 
 
Amendment to final sentence to provide clarification on optimising energy 
efficiency: 
 

To provide 
clarification on the 
level of energy 
efficiency and 
delivery of 
passivhaus 
expected. 

Discussed in the 
Issue 9 hearing 
session and 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-42. 

P
age 51



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

Proposals for residential development shall incorporate 10% of 
dwellings built to „Passivhaus‟ sStandard, unless it can be 
demonstrated to be unviable. by means of a financial assessment 
which clearly demonstrates the maximum proportion of dwellings 
built to Passivhaus Standard which can be achieved. 

MM18 
 

Page 120, 
Policy 
WEL37 

Amendment to 2nd paragraph, insertion of new 3rd paragraph and 
amendment to last paragraph to provide clarification on water efficiency, 
supply and disposal: 
 
Proposals for each phase of development shall be permitted only 
where they include the provision of infrastructure for adequate 
sustainable potable water supply. 
 
Planning application(s) for development will only be permitted where 
they include details of a comprehensive and waste water conveyance 
and treatment solution for Welborne, including details on the phasing 
of new waste water infrastructure. Development of any phase must 
which meets the required environmental standards and not result in 
an adverse impact in water quality or increase the risk of sewer 
flooding as a result of the waste water flows from the development. 
 
Proposals for residential development at Crockerhill Industrial Park 
should demonstrate how the existing nearby dwellings at Crockerhill 
may be connected to the Welborne sewerage waste water network. 

To provide 
additional clarity on 
waste water 
conveyance and 
disposal. 

Discussed in the 
Issue 9 hearing 
session and 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-42. 

MM19 
 

Page 123, 
Policy 
WEL39 

Amendment to whole policy to provide clarification on flood risk and 
sustainable drainage systems: 
 
The site promoters shall carry out Initial or outline planning 
applications for Welborne must include a site-specific flood risk 
assessment for the development site, to demonstrate that the 

To provide 
additional 
clarification on 
flood risk and 
sustainable 
drainage systems: 

Discussed in the 
Issue 9 hearing 
session and 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 

P
age 52



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

proposed development will not increase flood risk on the Welborne 
site or elsewhere. 
 
The development of Welborne shall manage flood risk, in accordance 
with the findings of the site-specific flood risk assessment through 
the integration of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). A 
comprehensive site-wide SuDS Strategy showing the principles of 
delivery, future management and maintenance across Welborne, shall 
be prepared and submitted with the initial planning applications. 
 
The type of SuDS proposed at Welborne, based on by the site-wide 
SuDS Strategy, shall: 
i.  Manage surface water arising from the development within the 

site, with no net increase, and where possible, a reduction in 
run-off rates and volumes; and 

ii.  Control run-off and prevent flooding for up to a 1 in 100 year 
rainfall event with a 30% allowance for climate change; and 

iii.  Follow the SuDS management train and be fully integrated with 
the green infrastructure network.; and 

iv. Be designed and built to the appropriate adoptable standard, as 
agreed with the Council and the appropriate SUDS Adoption 
Body. 

 
The site promoters shall carry out a flood risk assessment for the 
development site, to demonstrate that the proposed development will 
not increase flood risk on the Welborne site or elsewhere. 

Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-42. 

MM20 
 

Page 125, 
Policy 
WEL40 

Amendment to facilitate the location of the household waste recycling 
centre only to the west of the A32: 
 
A new HWRC Household Waste Recycling Centre will shall be 
developed as part of at Welborne within the main employment areas 

To ensure that a 
HWRC is delivered 
in a suitable 
location, to the 
west of the A32.  

Proposed in the 
Council’s 
Statement on 
Inspector Issue 9 
CD-16 and 

P
age 53



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

in the south of Welborne, either east or west of the A32. The location 
of the Household Waste Recycling Centre shall be shown on the 
comprehensive masterplan that supports the initial planning 
applications. 
 
Subject to securing the full funding package, land to locate the HWRC 
shall be completed by the end of Main Phase 3 made available to 
enable delivery of a fully operational HWRC on completion of 1000 
dwellings, or as agreed with the Council in consultation with the 
County Council, as waste disposal authority. 
 
The new facility will require: 
i.  A site amounting to 0.8 hectares, which is suitable for a split-

level facility and at a location agreed with the Council; 
ii.  Appropriate design and layout to facilitate integration alongside 

B1, B2 or B8 employment uses; 
iii.  Direct highway access which avoids any adverse highways 

impacts on the A32, M27 junction 10 or to internal site routes; 
iv. to not be located directly adjacent to existing or proposed 

residential areas; 
ivv. To be designed to avoid adverse impacts on the amenity of any 

nearby residential areas; and 
vvi.  To incorporate landscape screening to ensure that the facility is 

not intrusive into significant views from the surrounding area 
and from the M27 motorway. 

 
Storage space for domestic waste and recyclable materials awaiting 
collection must be provided for in all domestic and non-domestic 
buildings. 

discussed in the 
Issue 9 hearing 
session with 
modifications 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-42. 

MM21 
 

Page 126-
129, 

Amendment of Phasing Plan paragraphs 10.5 – 10.23: 
 

New phasing plan 
following a request 

Discussed in the 
Issue 11 hearing 

P
age 54



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

Paragraphs 
10.6 – 
10.23 
 

Phasing Plan  
 
The delivery of housing and employment floorspace is dependent upon a 
range of factors including market conditions.  The Council recognises that 
the site promoters have aspirations for the early delivery of employment 
floorspace which is in excess of the indicative employment development 
trajectory set out in Table 10.2 of this Plan.  The Council is supportive of 
early delivery of employment floorspace should sufficient market demand 
exist and suitable infrastructure is in place.  However, the Phasing Plan set 
out below, and the monitoring framework in Chapter 11 is based on the 
indicative trajectory for employment floorspace which has arose from the 
evidence available in the Welborne Employment Strategy and set out in 
Table 10.2. The description of employment land phasing is not an absolute 
cap on what may be achievable in each phase.  
 
10.5 Main Phase 1 (2015 – 2019) 
Commencement on site, initial major infrastructure and local road 
mitigation. 
 
Key outcomes –  

 Approximately 500 homes located adjacent to the District Centre and to 
the north of Knowle Road.  

 1,000 sq. m employment floorspace 

 District Centre commencement including the foodstore, and initial 
community facility 

 Local Centre commencement 
 
Necessary Infrastructure –  

 Initial works to Junction 10 of M27, including access from the A32 and 
associated roads 

 Local Highway Network Improvements 

from the Inspector. session with 
modifications 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-44. 

P
age 55



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

 Enhanced public transport 

 Pedestrian and cycle links 

 Initial utilities strengthening 

 Diversion of large diameter water mains 

 Initial primary school provision 

 Green Infrastructure, including SANGS 

 Initial structural planting 

 Sustainable Drainage systems 
 
This main phase represents initial site preparation and the delivery of 
infrastructure required to unlock the early stages of development.   
Increased capacity in utilities infrastructure and the road network will be 
required before the next phase can be commenced.   For roads, this will 
include site accesses from the A32 and Knowle Road, as well as initial 
improvements to the existing eastbound on-slip to Junction 10 of the M27.  
In relation to utilities, the primary electricity sub-station required to serve 
Welborne will need to be completed as well as the provision of sufficient 
foul water disposal capacity to serve at least the initial and following main 
phase, potentially including a new trunk sewer to Peel Common Waste 
Water Treatment Works. In addition, Portsmouth Water will have to divert 
an existing large diameter water main to allow this site to be developed, 
though the works along the A32 provide the opportunity for a service 
corridor to be delivered at the same time as the proposed road 
improvements. Similarly, a high pressure water main to the south of the 
site is likely to require diversion in this or the next phase of development 
with the new north-south link providing the opportunity for a service corridor 
to be created in this part of the site. 
 
10.6 Development within this initial phase will focus on areas close to the 
A32, with commencement to the District Centre likely.  A start may also be 
made on the construction of the Local Centre, to the north of the Knowle 

P
age 56



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

Road, which would help support new residential development in that area. 
In total, approximately 500 home completions are anticipated during this 
main phase, close to the A32 both north and south of the Knowle Road and 
around the Local and District Centres, and will entail the delivery of 
residential, employment and retail floorspace.  North of Knowle Road, the 
Local Centre will start to be developed, some initial retail units and 
residential areas.  In the southern part of the site, the District Centre will be 
commenced with the foodstore, some shops and initial community facility.  
Initial primary school provision will be made.  Some 1,000 sq. m of 
employment floorspace is anticipated in this phase in the southern part of 
the site, west of the A32. An early start of employment space for small 
businesses, including the incubation centre is envisaged, which will help 
support self-containment.  In total, approximately 500 home completions 
are anticipated during this main phase, close to the Local and District 
Centres.  If more homes and employment space can be delivered over this 
period this will be encouraged. 
 
10.7 During this phase, Welborne‟s green corridor network will begin to be 
delivered, concentrating initially on enhancements to existing links which 
relate to the areas being developed at this stage and securing key green 
infrastructure assets, including pedestrian and cycle links to important 
destinations including secondary schools off site.  Sufficient SANGS will 
need to be delivered, in this and subsequent phases prior to residential 
development, to support the avoidance or mitigation of potential damage to 
sensitive sites.  Similarly, complimentary green infrastructure, including 
open space and playing fields will need to be delivered in each phase to 
serve the growing community. 
 
10.8 Main Phase 2 (2019-2022) 
Completion of Junction 10 of the M27, development around the district and 
local centres. 

P
age 57



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

 
Key outcomes –  

 1,000 homes 

 5,850 sq. m employment floorspace 

 District Centre completed 

 Local Centre completed 
 
Critical Infrastructure –  

 Upgrade to Junction 10 of M27 complete 

 Physical works required to deliver BRT to the site 

 Enhanced public transport 

 District Community Centre 

 Pedestrian and cycle links 

 Initial playing pitches and sports provision  

 Green Infrastructure, including SANGS 

 Sustainable Drainage systems 
 
The second main phase will see the pace of development and investment 
in infrastructure increase. Key pieces of infrastructure required in this 
phase are the first primary school, early in the phase and the upgrade to 
Junction 10 of the M27 to provide an all-moves junction, by the end of the 
phase will be the completion of the upgrade to Junction 10 of the M27 to 
provide an all-moves junction.  Both This will be required to be fully 
operational before the next main phase can commence. The main internal 
road network will begin to take shape during this phase.  
 
10.9 During the second main phase, development will continue north of 
Knowle road, including at both the District and Local Centres which will be 
at least partially completed by the end of the phase.  It is also anticipated 
that the redevelopment of the Crockerhill site will commence during this 

P
age 58



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

phase Local Centre and near the District Centre, both of which will be at 
least partially completed by the end of the phase.  By the end of this phase 
some 1,500 dwellings will have been completed at Welborne. 
 
10.10 Employment development during this phase will be focused south of 
the District Centre, to the west of the A32, with the potential for a Business 
Incubation Centre to promote promoting indigenous economic growth 
within the new community, supported by a training and skills programme.  
Development of this part of the site provides the opportunity to lay out the 
new north-south link and other elements of the new internal road network, 
providing the opportunity to move water mains and other services to 
suitable alignments. 
 
10.11 The first primary school is expected to be delivered relatively early in 
this main phase, located adjacent to the Local Centre.  It is anticipated that 
the development of the District Centre during this main phase will include 
the main community building, linked to shared facilities in the primary 
school which will provide a range of community facilities that are needed to 
support the early residents, including the opportunity for health care and 
other services to be provided at Welborne prior to bespoke facilities being 
constructed.  It is also anticipated that the main foodstore for Welborne will 
be developed during this phase which will both help support self-
containment and will provide support for the economic viability of 
development.  Providing these facilities and services early during these 
early phases will be crucial for establishing a sense of place for Welborne 
at the outset and providing a focus for new residents and visitors. 
 
This phase also provides the first opportunity to deliver a Household Waste 
Recycling Centre. 
 
10.12 The green corridor network and the first significant green open 

P
age 59



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

spaces will be delivered during this second strategic main phase. Towards 
the end of this period, local work is anticipated to begin on formalising the 
main central park to ensure that the growing number of residents have 
sufficient formal green infrastructure. In addition, Fareham Common will 
need to be laid out to achieve SANGS standards out during this this phase, 
with access provided from Welborne and from north Fareham. 
 
10.13 Main Phase 3 (2022-2026) 
Central part of the site and main internal road network 
 
Key outcomes –  

 1,360 homes 

 18,500 sq. m employment floorspace 

 District Centre development 

 Local Centre development 
 
Critical Infrastructure –  

 Enhanced public transport 

 Primary care centre 

 Secondary School 

 Second primary school 

 Pedestrian and cycle links 

 Green Infrastructure, including SANGS 

 Central Park 

 Sustainable Drainage systems 
 
The third main phase will see the development start to take shape as 
significant residential and employment areas and community facilities are 
delivered.  Key pieces of infrastructure required by the end of this main 
phase include the second primary school, the primary care health 

P
age 60



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

centre(s), the central park and the on-site routing for the Bus Rapid Transit 
(BRT) service. These will all be required before the next main phase can 
commence. 
 
10.14 Residential development during the third main phase will continue to 
the north and east of the central park, and will begin to develop to the west 
of the park, with the main internal spine road network route providing 
access and BRT services to key areas including the new secondary school 
mainly be located in the centre of the site, taking shape around the central 
park.  The new north south route parallel to the A32 will also be completed. 
The main internal spine road network route providing access and BRT 
services to key areas will be delivered, including the new north-south route 
parallel to the A32. During this phase, at least one supported housing 
scheme, such as extra care accommodation, is expected to be completed. 
Residential development at the Crockerhill Industrial Park, to the east of 
the A32, is also anticipated in this phase.  Overall, by the end of this main 
phase, some 2,860 homes will have been delivered at Welborne. 
 
10.15 The main employment areas to the south of the central park will 
continue to be developed during the third main phase. This is likely to focus 
on the area to the west of the A32, potentially including the employment 
areas closest to the District Centre. The District Centre itself (as well as the 
Local Centre) should have been completed by the end of this phase. 
 
10.16 This phase also provides the first opportunity to deliver a Household 
Waste Recycling Centre within one of the employment areas to the west of 
the A32. 
 
10.17 The green corridor network will be continued during this main phase 
and the central park will be expected to be substantially complete by the 
end of this phase to ensure both that the growing number of residents 

P
age 61



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

benefit from this key strategic open space and also to ensure that the new 
secondary school is well connected by sustainable travel routes to the 
completed housing areas east of the park. 
 
10.18 Main Phase 4 (2026-2030) 
Completion of residential development to the west of the A32 and 
commencement to the east 
 
Key outcomes –  

 1,360 homes 

 24,500 sq. m employment floorspace 

 District Centre development 

 Local Centre development 
 
Critical Infrastructure –  

 Third primary school 

 Community hub 

 Pedestrian and cycle links 

 Green Infrastructure, including SANGS 

 Sustainable Drainage systems 
 
Main Phase 4 is anticipated to involve considerable residential 
development to the west of the central park and is also likely to see the 
completion of residential areas north of Knowle Road and north of the site. 
In addition, the areas of housing east of the A32 are likely to be 
commenced during this main phase.  Finally, the redevelopment of the 
Dean Farm area from employment to residential is expected to take place 
during this main phase.  By the end of Main Phase 4 about 4,220 homes 
will have been completed at Welborne.  Development of the western part of 
the site (north of Funtley) will need to accommodate the future provision of 
a new rail halt on the Fareham to Eastleigh rail line, unless it is 

P
age 62



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

demonstrated that it is not technically feasible or viable to deliver this 
before the end of the Plan period. 
 
10.19 With respect to other infrastructure, the key items to be delivered 
during this phase include the third primary school and the completion of the 
Community Hub. This phase will also need to include the completion of a 
range of green infrastructure assets, including the community playing 
pitches and the laying out of the strategic green infrastructure areas, 
adjacent to the Welborne site, to SANGS standards. 
 
10.20 A significant quantity of employment floorspace is likely to be 
completed during Main Phase 4, potentially amounting to about 24,500 
square metres. However, the net employment floorspace added during this 
period At some point in the development, the total employment net 
floorspace delivered will be reduced due to the expected loss of about 
14,000 square metres to residential development at Dean Farm. 
 
In addition, development will also commence to the east of the A32, with 
main road infrastructure and residential development commencing to the 
north of Roche Court. 
 
10.21 Main Phase 5 (2030-2036) 
Development of eastern part of the site 
 
Key outcomes –  

 1,780 homes 

 25,000 sq. m employment floorspace 

 District Centre development 

 Local Centre development 
 
Critical Infrastructure –  

P
age 63



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

 Enhanced public transport 

 Pedestrian and cycle links 

 Green Infrastructure, including SANGS 

 Sustainable Drainage systems 
 
The final strategic phase will see Welborne substantially completed, with 
residential development at the west and north of the site being finalised, in 
addition to the completion of housing east of the A32, residential 
development to the east of the A32 completed both north and south of 
Roche Court. By the end of Main Phase 5, approximately 6,000 homes will 
have been completed. 
 
10.22 Employment land will continue to be developed during Main Phase 
5, both east and west of the A32. Depending on take up, it is expected that 
by the end of this phase a net additional employment floorspace of about 
60,000 square metres will have been completed at Welborne. However, 
even with strong take-up, it is not likely that all of Welborne‟s employment 
development will have been completed by 2036. Therefore, it is expected 
that a further 23,500 square metres of floorspace will be completed in the 
years following Main Phase 5.  
 
10.23 There are no other strategic infrastructure items phased to be 
completed during Main Phase 5. However, if any infrastructure from earlier 
phases has been delayed for any reason, this phase provides the 
opportunity to deliver these.  In addition, where specific sites within 
Welborne have been „safeguarded‟ in accordance with Policy WEL42 
below, those sites may be released for alternative uses at the start of this 
phase. 
 
Amendment to paragraphs 1-4 of Policy WEL41: 
 

P
age 64



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

Initial planning applications for development at Welborne shall be 
accompanied by a detailed phasing plan and strategy for 
implementation of infrastructure delivery plan for the whole Welborne 
development.  This phasing plan and infrastructure delivery plan 
implementation strategy will be guided by the Phasing Plan (set out 
within the Concept Masterplan Phasing Plan Chapter 10 of the 
Welborne Plan) and by the Infrastructure Delivery Plan that supports 
this plan.  Once approved by the Council, the detailed phasing plan 
and infrastructure delivery plan implementation strategy will be kept 
under review over the life of the development, with changes being 
submitted to the Council for approval alongside relevant planning 
applications. 
 
The phasing of development and associated infrastructure at 
Welborne shall be in accordance with the agreed detailed phasing 
plan and infrastructure delivery plan implementation strategy, unless 
it can be demonstrated that suitable appropriate infrastructure is 
available and the development can be adequately serviced. 
 
Some overlapping between one main phase and another may be 
acceptable, providing it can be demonstrated that the earlier main 
phase has been substantially completed and that any key 
infrastructure items, upon which the later phase depends, have been 
fully delivered. 
 
Proposals which would result in the delivery of unsustainable and 
isolated development, or that would place an adverse impact on the 
amenity of existing residents, for example by creating an 
infrastructure deficit, will be refused. 

MM22 
 

Page 133, 
Policy 

Deletion of final paragraph of Policy WEL41: 
 

To remove 
references to the 

Proposed in the 
Council’s 

P
age 65



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

WEL41 Where, following an independently tested viability assessment, a deficit in 
the infrastructure (or affordable housing) provision necessary to serve any 
main phase of the development is accepted, the Council will employ its 
„deferral of contributions policy‟, as set out within the Welborne Planning 
Obligations SPD.  The objective of this policy will be to claw back any 
agreed deficit, subject to market conditions improving sufficiently to trigger 
the claw-back element of the policy. 

deferral of 
infrastructure 
contributions and 
to improve clarity. 

Statement on 
Inspector Issue 
11 CD-18. 

MM23 
 

Pages 138, 
Paragraphs 
11.5 - 11.6 
 

Amendments to provide clarification on monitoring and review: 

 

11.5 Monitoring the outcomes of the policies in the Welborne Plan will be 
undertaken on a regular basis to enable early action to be taken to 
overcome any barriers to delivery of the plan‟s objectives and policies. The 
Phasing Plan contained within Chapter 10 of this document sets out the 
key outcomes and critical infrastructure identified for each of the main 
phases of development.  This has been produced to inform the 
understanding of the Plan, using the best information available.  It should 
be recognised that the mechanism which will deliver Welborne, including 
critical infrastructure, will be the phasing plan, infrastructure delivery plan 
and s106 planning agreement approved alongside planning application(s) 
for the site.  Nonetheless, the phasing plan in Chapter 10 provides a useful 
guide to the Council‟s expected outcomes, including infrastructure. 
 
11.6 Where appropriate, Borough-wide targets which are monitored 
through the Council‟s Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) will be broken 
down and applied to the Welborne Plan area, so that the contribution of 
Welborne to Borough-wide targets can be seen on a local scale. Strategic 
Group meetings will be undertaken on a regular basis throughout the year 
to enable early action to be taken to overcome any barriers to delivery of 
the Plan‟s objectives and policies. Particular reference will be made to the 
key outcomes and critical infrastructure listed in the Phasing Plan in 
Chapter 10 of this Plan.  Any risk to the timely delivery of either will be 

To reflect the 
Inspector‟s 
concern that the 
Monitoring and 
Review section of 
the Plan should be 
made clearer, the 
Council has made 
significant 
modifications 
which set out the 
key elements of 
the monitoring and 
review mechanism 
for the project. 
 
 

Discussed in the 
Issue 11 hearing 
session with 
modifications 
subsequently 
proposed in the 
Council’s 
Additional 
Material 
Statement CD-44. 

P
age 66



 

Mod Ref: Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Main Modification 
 

Reason for 
Change 
 

Source of 
modification 

reported as an entry in the Delivery Risk Register which will be created and 
reviewed at the Group meetings.  Given the wider public interest in the 
delivery of the Welborne project, it will be appropriate for changes in the 
Delivery Risk Register for Welborne to be reported to the Welborne 
Standing Conference as and when they arise and included in the Council‟s 
Authority Monitoring Report. 

 

Part B – Minor Modifications 
These are additional modifications to the Plan which do not directly relate to “soundness” but nonetheless improve the Plan.  They 
include changes arising as a consequence of the proposed Main Modifications, updates, minor amendments to the supporting text and 
other changes which the Inspector has determined would not constitute Main Modifications.  For clarity, these have been recorded and 
published and will also form part of the six-week period for Public representations commencing 26 January 2015.  The additional 
modifications include a large number of changes to Chapters 6, 10 and 11.  To aid clarity, those modifications are set out in Parts B1, B2 
and B3 of this Appendix. 
 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM01 
 

Page 1, Section 
sub-heading 

The Publication Draft Welborne Plan 
 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 

AM02 
 

Page 1,  
Paragraph 1.2 

This document is the second, or The „Publication‟ draft of the Welborne Plan was 
published in February 2014 for a period of representations, following the 
completion of which This is the version of the Welborne Plan that the Council 
intends to the Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State in June 2014 for 
independent examination. by a Planning Inspector, later in 2014. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 
 

P
age 67



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM03 
 

Page 1,  
Paragraph 1.3 

This draft of the plan has been published now to provide an opportunity for you 
to comment before the Welborne Plan is submitted for examination.  Any 
comments you make on the Publication Plan are important and will be submitted 
to the Planning Inspector for consideration alongside the Welborne Plan and its 
supporting documents.  Please note that the ability to speak at the independent 
examination will be limited to those who have made comments seeking a 
change to the plan at this consultation stage, and have indicated a wish to 
appear before the Inspector. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

AM04 
 

Page 1,  
Paragraph 1.4 

The purpose of the independent examination will be is to consider whether the 
Welborne Plan is legally compliant (i.e. if it has been prepared in accordance 
with the law set out in planning legislation) and whether it is a „sound‟ plan.  To 
be considered „sound‟ a plan must meet the criteria set out in paragraph 182 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework (see extract below).  Therefore, any 
comments received regarding this Publication Plan must address issues of legal 
compliance and soundness. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 
 

AM05 
 

Page 2, Section 
sub-heading 

How to Respond to the Consultation on this Plan 
 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 

AM06 
 

Page 2,  
Paragraph 1.5 

The Publication Welborne Plan as well as the Sustainability Appraisal and the 
evidence base that has informed the objectives and policies within this plan can 
all be viewed online at: http://www.fareham.gov.uk/have_your_say/.  All of the 
above documents are available to view at the Civic Offices in Fareham and the 
Publication Plan and Sustainability Appraisal are available at Fareham Library. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

P
age 68

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/have_your_say/


 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM07 
 

Page 2,  
Paragraph 1.6 

In making comments, it is helpful if you identify the part of the plan you are 
commenting on and explain the reasons for your comments.  If you wish to send 
any comments to the Council, then please complete the response form available 
online.  Alternatively, a paper copy of the response form is available at the Civic 
Offices and at Fareham Library and this should be returned to the Welborne 
Planning Team at: 
 
Department of Planning and Environment 
Fareham Borough Council 
Civic Offices 
Civic Way 
Fareham 
Hampshire 
PO16 7AZ 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

AM08 
 

Page 2,  
Paragraph 1.7 

The six week period of consultation commences on Friday 28th February 2014 
and will conclude on Friday 11th April 2014.  All comments must be received by 
the Council no later than 5pm on Friday 11th April.  As this is a statutory stage 
of consultation, no late comments can be accepted. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

AM09 
 

Page 3,  
Paragraph 1.8,  

Addition of bullet points to end of list: 
 

 A 6-week period of consultation on the Proposed Submission Draft Welborne 
Plan starting in February 2014; and 

 A 6-week period of consultation on the Suggested Change to the Draft 
Welborne Plan identifying an additional alternative location for the Secondary 
School starting in June 2014.. 

To update the Plan showing 
additional consultation up to 
the Submission Plan 

AM10 
 

Page 3,  
Paragraph 1.9 - 
1st sentence 

These and other opportunities provided interested parties, developers, residents 
and landowners with the chance to express their views on the issues and 
options that emerged during the early strategic masterplanning work as well as 
on the initial all stages of preparation of the Welborne Plan.   

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

P
age 69



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM11 
 

Page 3,  
Paragraph 1.10 

Following the completion of all consultation period referred to in paragraph 1.7 
1.8 above, this the Publication Draft Welborne Plan (Submission version), 
together with the supporting evidence base, the final Sustainability Appraisal, 
Habitats Regulation Assessment and all of the comments representations 
submitted on the Publication Draft Welborne Plan received, will were be 
submitted to the Secretary of State Planning Inspectorate for independent 
examination.  At the conclusion of the examination, and following publication of 
the Government Planning Inspector‟s report, the intention of the Council is to 
adopt the Welborne Plan will be adopted as Part 3 of Fareham's Local Plan.  
The timeframe for All of the past and future stages in the preparation stages of 
the Welborne Plan can be seen are presented in Figure 1.1 below. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

AM12 
 

Page 4,  
Figure 1.1 

Independent Examination (July 2014 - October December April 20142015) 
 
Adoption of the Welborne Plan (Early Spring 2015) 

To reflect appropriate 
examination timescales. 

AM13 
 

Page 4,  
Paragraph 1.11 -  
1st sentence 

The dates for all the future stages in this and all other of Fareham‟s Local Plan 
Development Ddocuments can be found in the Local Development Scheme.    

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 

P
age 70



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM14 
 

Page 4,  
Paragraph 1.13 - 
2nd bullet 

• Local Plan Part 2 (Development Sites and Policies)  - This part of the Local 
Plan sets out the Council's approach to managing and delivering development 
in the rest of Borough, outside of Welborne, for the period to 2026.  This 
document will be subject to examination by the Planning Inspectorate from 
late 2014 through to early 2015. is also currently being consulted on at the 
Publication stage, prior to submission to the Secretary of State alongside the 
Welborne Plan later in 2014.  The consultation period for Local Plan Part 2 
also ends on Friday 11th April 2014.  

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

AM15 
 

Page 9,  
Paragraph 1.34 -  
2nd sentence 

The Final Sustainability Report1 that accompanies this Publication Draft 
Submission Welborne Plan presents the results of a detailed sustainability 
appraisal of the final strategic masterplan and of each of the policies within this 
plan.  The Final SA report is being made available for public comment alongside 
this plan. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 

AM16 
 

Page 9,  
Paragraph 1.36 -  
last sentence 

The Appropriate Assessment Report is forms part of the HRA2, and is being 
made available for public comment alongside this Publication Plan. 
 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 
 

AM17 
 

Page 11,  
Footnote 24 

Chapter 10 below sets out the main policy for the „deferral of contributions 
approach‟ and the Welborne Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD 
will provide a full explanation of how the approach will operate. This SPD will be 
adopted at the same time as the Welborne Plan in early 2015 

For consistency 

AM18 
 

Page 2,  
Paragraph 1.48 - 
last sentence 

It was also tested with the local community at public exhibitions and through an 
online public survey in July 2012 and subsequently through the consultation on 
the Draft Welborne Plan in from May and to 2013 and the period of 
representations on the Publication Draft Plan in February to April 2014. 

To reflect submission status 
of plan, not publication 

                                            
 
 
1
 Sustainability Appraisal on the Publication Draft Welborne Plan (Urban Edge, January 2014) 

2
 Habitat Regulations Assessment for the Welborne Plan: Final Report (Urban Edge, January 2014) 

P
age 71

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/new_community/sustainabilityappraisal.aspx
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/new_community/habitatsreg.aspx


 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM19 
 

Page 15,  
Paragraph 1.61 - 
2nd sentence 

Finally, planning applications should be consistent with any relevant guidance 
provided by adopted Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) that support 
the Fareham Local Plan, including the Welborne Design Guidance SPD and the 
Welborne Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD. 

For consistency 

AM20 
 

Page 32, 
Paragraph 3.45 

They will also provide a greater level onof detail ofon the broad layout and 
disposition of the main land uses, to set the parameters for each successive 
phase of the development. 

To amend a typographical 
error 

AM21 Page 33, 
Paragraph 3.46 
 

Addition to end of paragraph 3.46: 
 
In the event that the strategic design codes are not submitted with initial outline 
planning applications, the high-level development principles that will guide the 
development of Welborne as a whole, will need to be clearly set out and 
accompany the Structuring Plan.  Any high level design principles which 
accompany the Structuring Plan would need to be in accordance with the 
Welborne Design Guidance Supplementary Planning Document. 

To provide additional clarity 
on strategic design codes. 

AM22 
 

Page 33, 
Paragraph 3.47 

Addition to end of paragraph 3.47: 
 
In order to give sufficient guidance on what is required from the Structuring Plan, 
Comprehensive Masterplanning process and the Strategic Design Guides, the 
Council has prepared the draft Welborne Design Guidance SPD, which sets out 
those principles which should be further explored and incorporated into the 
relevant documents. 

To explain the role of the 
Welborne Design Guidance 
SPD.  

AM23 Page 38-39, 
Policy WEL5 
 

Amendment to 2nd paragraph of WEL5 
 
For each of The settlement buffers allocated, as set out below, these are 
shown on Appendix B.3 and on the Fareham Policies Map. Development on 
land included within the settlement buffer allocations will generally be 
resisted and will only be permitted where: 

Grammatical correction 

P
age 72



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM24 Page 44, 
Paragraph 4.17 
 

Addition of new paragraph below existing paragraph 4.17: 
 
A key principle in the layout and design of Welborne will be the treatment of the 
A32 to ensure that land uses on the eastern side of A32 are properly integrated 
into the main community to the west side. In particular, through the use of 
prioritised crossing points that ensure safe pedestrian and cyclist movements to 
and from everyday facilities, as well as encourage wider community integration. 

To reflect the fundamental 
importance of connectivity 
across the A32 within the 
general design principles of 
the Plan. 

AM25 Page 44, 
Paragraph 4.18 

Addition to end of paragraph 4.18: 
 
The layout and design of Welborne will also need to ensure that it takes into 
account and effectively mitigates a number of potential environmental impacts, 
including noise, light pollution, and air quality within the site. Impacts on air 
quality outside of the site boundaries will need to be addressed through the 
Transport Assessment, and Environmental Assessment. 

To clarify the proposed 
amendments to WEL 6 

P
age 73



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM26 
 

Pages 44-45, 
Policy WEL6 

WEL6 - General Design Principles 
 
The following are the design principles which will guide the future 
development of Welborne. All proposals for the development of Welborne 
shall clearly demonstrate how; 

 
i.  They have responded to the landscape setting and character area 

within which they sit, and set out the urban design principles which 
have directly influenced the design and layout of the proposals and 
demonstrate how they contribute towards creating a unique Fareham 
garden community;  

ii.  The various constraints and opportunities on the site have influenced 
and been addressed in the design proposals;  

iii.  The layout and design will help to create safe well-connected 
neighbourhoods, and have particular regard for ensuring that 
proposals maximise opportunities to prioritise pedestrian and cyclist 
movement across the A32; 

iv. The scheme has been designed to ensure that the new buildings and 
spaces are flexible and adaptable to accommodate changes in 
technology, and personal or family circumstances; 

v.  the issues of noise, light pollution and air quality have been 
considered in developing proposals, and shall set out the measures 
necessary to mitigate any likely impacts. 

 
 “In order to assist the process of comprehensive masterplanning and 
preparing the strategic design codes the Council will prepare the Welborne 
Design Guidance SPD, setting out those principles which should be further 
explored and incorporated into the above documents”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Changed By Main 
Modification (MM5) 
 
 
 
 
Changed by Main 
Modification (MM4) 
 
 
To be consistent with the 
approach of removing all 
references to SPDs in 
policy. 

P
age 74



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM27 Page 46, 
Paragraph 4.23 

Insert new paragraph below existing paragraph 4.23:   
 
It is recognised that at the time of submission of an outline planning application 
for Welborne, the design process may not be sufficiently advanced to enable the 
Strategic Design Codes to be provided. Policy WEL7 therefore, allows for the 
Strategic Design Codes to be submitted with subsequent detailed or reserved 
matter planning applications.  Where Strategic Design Codes are not submitted 
with an outline planning application, high-level development principles will 
instead be provided to describe the design assumptions behind the key 
elements of the Structuring Plan. The development principles will guide all 
subsequent masterplans, detailed applications and the Strategic Design Codes 
by demonstrating how the following elements could function in technical and 
design terms: 
 

 Green and blue infrastructure; 

 Access and movement; 

 Land use; 

 Building heights and density; and 

 Character areas. 

To provide additional 
clarification on the role and 
timing of Strategic Design 
Code. 

AM28 
 

Page 55, 
Paragraph 5.24 

Addition to end of paragraph 5.24: 
 
All car and cycle parking in employment areas should be provided in accordance 
with the Non-Residential Car and Cycle Parking SPD. 

Explain role of Non-
Residential Car and Cycle 
Parking SPD. 
 

AM29 
 

Pages 56-57, 
Policy WEL9 - 
item iii 

iii.  Provide sufficient parking to cater for the needs of the employment 
development in accordance with the Non-Residential Car and Cycle 
Parking SPD; 

Remove reference to SPD 
from policy – change 
PM502 places reference in 
supporting text. 

P
age 75



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM30 
 

Page 61, Policy 
WEL10 - 5th 
paragraph 

The District Centre shall be well connected to the employment areas, to the 
central park and to Welborne's residential areas through attractive and 
direct walking and cycle routes which make use of the green corridor 
network where possible. Bus stops shall be provided at the District Centre 
for local services and for the BRT. These bus stops shall be located in a 
highly visible and accessible position within the District Centre. Adequate 
parking for each use will need to be provided, in accordance with the 
Borough‟s Residential Car and Cycling Parking Standards SPD and the 
Non-residential Car and Cycle Parking Standards SPD. 

Remove reference to SPD 
from policy – paragraph 
5.37 already explains role 
of SPD in supporting text. 
 
 

AM31 
 

Page 62, 
Paragraph 5.51 - 
3rd & 4th 
sentences 

Where being proposed, these sorts of services All planning applications for retail 
and leisure services within the Local Centre will be required to demonstrate, 
through robust impact assessments that they will not give rise to significant 
adverse impacts on Fareham Town Centre or Wickham‟s centre.  Impact 
assessments will also need to demonstrate that retail and leisure proposals the 
Local Centre will be consistent with the role of the Local Centre and its place 
within Fareham‟s hierarchy of centres overall will serve to complement the 
function of the District Centre and will not adversely compete with it the District 
Centre or with Wickham‟s centre. 

To provide clarity on how 
impact assessments will be 
assessed. 
 

AM32 Page 73, 
Paragraph 5.91 

The Strategic Framework Diagram (Appendix B.2) identifies the indicative 
location of the secondary school, at the western edge of the new community, 
immediately north of the District Centre. with the majority of its playing fields 
within the Knowle Triangle which is within Winchester City Council‟s area.  The 
approximate location of the school is also indicated with a symbol on the 
Fareham Policies Map, an extract of which is presented at and on Appendix B.3 
of this plan.  This location emerged from the concept masterplanning work and 
from extensive engagement with the relevant landowners, Hampshire County 
Council, Winchester City Council and others local communities. 

To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School. 

P
age 76



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

AM33 Page 73, 
Paragraph 5.92 

The location is designed to be highly accessible by sustainable travel modes 
from the main residential areas at Welborne, west of the A32, and would provide 
additional footfall around the district centre. Furthermore, this location will also 
provide opportunities for a primary school to be delivered in close proximity to 
the secondary school.  It is also focussed on supporting the Community Hub as 
the smallest of Welborne‟s three centres and the adjacent primary school.  In 
addition, the location will provide clear opportunities for pupils from Knowle to 
access a much closer school which will support significant reductions in 
vehicular travel to school for 11-16 year-olds from Knowle. 

To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School. 

AM34 Page 73, 
Paragraph 5.93 

The location of the school, relatively close adjacent to the Knowle Road District 
Centre, will enable it to be constructed in line with its anticipated first intake of 
pupils in 2025/2026.  The location and minimum size of the site required (9 
hectares) will also ensure that the school's playing fields are incorporated 
alongside it, and the landscaping beyond these, are able to reduce the visual 
impact of Welborne into the rest of the Knowle Triangle, which will perform a 
SANGS role for Welborne. 

To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School. 

AM35 Page 73, 
Paragraph 5.94 

In terms of the layout of the school the clear expectation is that the parts of the 
school that are located outside of the Welborne Plan boundary, and therefore 
outside of Fareham Borough, will comprise grass pitch playing fields with no 
buildings or permanent structures, beyond fencing and goal posts. This is 
essential in order to ensure that the Knowle Triangle will be able to perform its 
role as a settlements gap between Knowle and Welborne, as set out within the 
Winchester Local Plan Part 1. The layout of the school will need to respond to 
noise levels in external areas, and ensure that appropriate noise levels are 
achieved for external teaching and playing areas through the orientation of 
school buildings. Furthermore the location of the high and intermediate pressure 
gas pipelines will also need to be taken into account when determining the 
layout of the school. 

To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School. 

P
age 77



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM36 
 

Page 73, 
Paragraph 5.95 

As referred to above, the opportunity exists to deliver the a primary school and 
secondary schools within the „education cluster‟ adjacent to the  District Centre 
in the east of Welborne, as a single 'all-through school‟, and this will be explored 
further with the County Council. Developing an 'all-through school‟ in stages, as 
the new community evolved, could potentially facilitate an earlier provision of 
secondary education on site. 

To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School and better reflect 
the role of the County 
Council in education 
planning and provision. 

 
AM37 

Page 81 – 84, 
Paragraphs 6.16 
– 6.30 

Amended Affordable Housing supporting text – set out in Part B1 To provide clearer guidance 
on Council‟s approach to 
delivering affordable 
housing. 
 

 
AM38 
 

Page 87, 
Paragraph 6.50 

Addition of new paragraph below existing paragraph 6.50: 
 
All custom build proposals for plots at Welborne should be consistent with the 
Welborne Design Guidance SPD. 

Explain role of Design 
Guidance SPD. 
 
 

 
AM39 
 

Page 87-88, 
Policy WEL21 – 
4th paragraph 

Custom-builders taking up plots at Welborne shall ensure that their 
proposals comply with relevant policies within the Fareham Development 
Plan and are consistent with the Welborne Design Guidance SPD and any 
relevant and approved strategic design codes.  

Remove reference to SPD 
from policy – change 
PM401 places reference in 
supporting text. 

 
AM40 
 

Page 89, Policy 
WEL22 - 1st 
paragraph 
 

WEL22 - Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
 
Provision for gypsies, travellers and travelling showpeople is not 
anticipated to be required at Welborne. However, a Any planning 
applications for one or more permanent pitches for gypsies or travellers at 
Welborne will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that the 
proposal: 

To better reflect the fact 
that sites for gypsies, 
travellers and travelling 
showpeople are not 
allocated at Welborne or 
anticipated to come forward 
at Welborne. 

 
AM41 

Page 91, 
Paragraph 7.9 

The Transport Strategy and the Strategic Framework have been developed in 
tandem, to develop revised high level transport principles for Welborne.  
Transport modelling undertaken to date indicates that the majority of movements 
to and from Welborne will be to the south, including the M27. 

To recognise the 
anticipated movement 
patterns to & from 
Welborne. 

P
age 78



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM42 
 

Page 91, 
Paragraph 7.12 

Addition of new paragraph below existing paragraph 7.12: 
 
Travel planning will be used across the site to assist accessibility to and lead to 
a reduction in use of the private car.  Initiatives will be delivered with each part of 
the site in accordance with the Framework Travel Plan. 

To provide explanation on 
how travel planning will be 
delivered. 
 

 
AM43 
 

Page 97, 
Paragraph 7.30 

Any planning application for the site must be supported by a Transport 
Assessment to assess the phasing of the development against the 
implementation of various off-site highway improvements, including works to the 
M27 and A32 and any other primary or secondary links or junctions to mitigate 
the traffic impacts on the local and strategic road network and mitigate any 
environmental impacts, including any impacts on air quality in the surrounding 
area. 

To provide clarity over the 
need to ensure the 
appropriate management of 
air quality. 

 
AM44 
 

Page 102,  
Paragraph 7.52 

Addition of new paragraph below paragraph 7.52 
 
Paragraph 8.38 of this Plan identifies a number of links to the surrounding 
countryside which should be fully explored to create improved pedestrian and 
cycling links to surrounding communities and the surrounding countryside. 

To aid legibility of Plan. 

 
AM45 
 

Page 105, 
Paragraph 8.9 
 

One of the key aspects of the GI Strategy is to encourage the new community at 
Welborne to enjoy healthier life-styles. This will in part be achieved through 
providing a network of connected open spaces which encourages walking, 
informal exercise, and sports. It will also include giving the residents of Welborne 
the opportunity to grow their own food and will provide at least 2.1 2.0 hectares 
of allotments, with the further opportunity to provide community orchards.  This 
amount is based on the standard of 27 allotment plots per 1,000 population 
households. 

To correct error in the open 
space requirements. 
 
 

 
AM46 
 

Page 105, 
Footnote 130 

The allotments standard being taken forward within Policy WEL29 derives from 
the Fareham Allotment Strategy (FBC, 2010) and is based on 27 plots (of 125 
square metres each) per 1,000 population households, which equates to 0.34 
0.13 hectares per 1,000 population. 

To correct error in the open 
space requirements. 
 
 

P
age 79



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM47 
 

Page 111, Policy 
WEL31 - 1st para 

The initial planning applications for development at Welborne shall be 
supported by a full ecological assessment to identify and address potential 
impacts on designated sites, priority habitats and priority and protected 
species, within and immediately adjacent to the site boundary. 

For clarity. 
 
 

 
AM48 
 

Page 111, Policy 
WEL31 - 2nd para 

The biodiversity assessment ecological assessment shall clearly set out 
how biodiversity interests will be protected, and where possible enhanced. 
Given that the development of Welborne will take place over a long period 
of time, the biodiversity assessment ecological assessment should 
provide details of how it is intended that it is regularly updated to ensure 
that any mitigation measures required are effective. 

To remove confusion as to 
what is required. 
 
 

 
AM49 
 

Page 113, 
Paragraph 8.43 

Addition to end of paragraph: 
 
Structural landscaping schemes will be required to demonstrate how the 
proposed landscaping responds to the areas of high landscape quality to the 
north and east of the site, especially when viewed across the site from the south. 
The structural landscaping should take into account and soften the potential 
impact of the eastern edge of Welborne on long distance views of the site from 
Portsdown Hill. 

To provide further clarity 
over the expected 
protection for areas of high 
landscape sensitivity. 

 
AM50 
 

Page 120, 
Paragraph 9.19 - 
3rd sentence 

If connection of Welborne to the Knowle STW is to be pursued, the site 
promoters will need to demonstrate that the STW could be expanded and gain 
planning permission from Winchester City Hampshire County Council as the 
waste disposal authority STW is in their area. 

To correct who the 
appropriate waste planning 
body would be. 

P
age 80



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM51 

Page 132, 
Paragraph 10.35 

Therefore, the Council expects site promoters to use the phasing principles and 
guidance within the Concept Masterplan Phasing Plan this chapter of the 
Welborne Plan as well the IDP to produce a detailed phasing plan and an 
infrastructure delivery plan strategy for the implementation of the development.  
This phasing plan and infrastructure delivery plan implementation strategy will 
need to be submitted to the Council for approval alongside initial planning 
applications for development at Welborne.  In line with the principle of a flexible 
approach, the site promoters will be expected to keep the phasing plan and 
infrastructure delivery plan implementation strategy under review and submit any 
changes to the Council for approval alongside relevant planning applications. 

To provide clarity on 
infrastructure delivery and 
phasing. 

 
AM52 

Pages 132 – 133, 
Paragraphs 10.36 
– 10.41 

Deleted Deferral of Contributions section – set out in Part B2 To remove references to 
the deferral of infrastructure 
contributions and to 
improve clarity. 

 
AM53 
 

Page 138-141, 
Chapter 11 

See Part B3 for amendments to supporting text of Chapter 11: Monitoring and 
Review - paragraphs 11.5 and 11.6 are main modifications. 

To provide clarity (along 
with modification PM11-2) 
on frequency and 
mechanism for monitoring. 

 
AM54 
 

Glossary-new 
item  

Transport Framework: A high level statement prepared by the site developers, 
setting out the key transport implications and strategy for the site as a whole, 
accompanying the Structuring Plan for the site. 

For clarity. 

 
AM55 

Glossary – new 
item 

Design Principles: A high level series of principles which shall guide the future 
design work to be undertaken in preparation of planning applications.  They are 
set out in the Strategic Framework Diagram, the policies of the Welborne Plan 
and relevant policies in the Core Strategy. The Principles set out the scheme 
parameters and design objectives that will underpin the Structuring Plan.  They 
will ensure that the Vision for Welborne is an integral part of the proposals and 
set a consistent high-level approach to design that will guide all future planning 
applications. 

For clarity. 
 
 

P
age 81



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM56 
 

Glossary – new 
item 

Environment standards: As set out in legislation or regulation regarding 
acceptable levels of pollutants or other hazards. For all water issues, the 
appropriate standards are monitored and regulated by the Environment Agency. 

For clarity. 
 
 

 
AM57 
 

Glossary – new 
item 

Travel Planning: Programmes and initiatives designed to influence travel 
behaviour that will assist accessibility to new developments and lead to a 
reduction in use of the private car.  The standard method of meeting the 
objectives of travel planning initiatives is through the preparation and delivery of 
Travel Plans. These are represented by a package of measures designed by a 
workplace, school or other organisation to encourage safe, healthy and 
sustainable travel options. 

For clarity. 

P
age 82



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM58 

Glossary – 
amended item 
 

Garden City: A development and design principle for planned new communities 
developed by Ebenezer Howard in the 19th century which aims to enhance the 
natural environment, provide high quality affordable housing and locally 
accessible jobs. Key principles include community ownership of land and long 
term stewardship of assets, high quality imaginative design including homes with 
gardens, mixed tenure homes which are affordable for ordinary people, a strong 
local jobs offer with a variety of employment opportunities within the garden city 
and easy commuting distance of homes, generous green space linked to the 
wider countryside, access to strong local cultural, recreational and shopping 
facilities, integrated and accessible transport systems and local food sourcing, 
including allotments. 
 
Garden Community: Welborne seeks to take as a starting point the original 
guiding principles of the Garden City movement and update them to make them 
relevant to the 21st century.  The long established garden city principles which 
will help guide the development of Welborne include the long term stewardship 
of community assets, high quality imaginative design including homes with 
gardens, mixed tenure homes which are affordable for ordinary people, a strong 
local jobs offer with a variety of employment opportunities, easy access to 
generous green spaces linked to the wider countryside, local cultural, 
recreational and shopping facilities, integrated and accessible transport systems 
and local food sourcing, including allotments. 

To reflect Welborne‟s status 
as a garden community, not 
a garden city. 
 

 
AM59 

Glossary – new 
item 

1 in 100 year rainfall event:  This is the likelihood (return period) of a specific 
rainfall event occurring. The intensity of rainfall runoff is defined by its return 
period and a high return period event, such as a 1 in 100 year event, will have 
greater rainfall runoff. However, although a 1 in 100 year event has very intense 
rainfall, it has only a 1% chance or greater of happening each year. 

For clarity. 
 
 

P
age 83



 

Mod Ref: 
 

Plan Ref. 
 

Proposed Minor Modification 
 

Reason for Change 
 

 
AM60 
 

Appendix A: 
Schedule of 
Evidence and 
Background 
Documents 

Minor revisions to Schedule of Evidence and Background Documents. For clarity on final list of 
documents used for 
examination. 

 
AM61 
 

Appendix B.2, 
Strategic 
Framework 
Diagram 

See Appendix C for revised Strategic Framework Diagram. To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School adjacent to the 
District Centre. 

 
AM62 
 

Appendix B.3, 
Extract of the 
Fareham Policies 
Map covering 
Welborne 

See Appendix C for revised policies map. To reflect the change in 
location of the Secondary 
School adjacent to the 
District Centre. 

 
AM63 

Adopted 
Proposals Map to 
Adopted 
Proposals Map 
(SD09) 

Proposed minor modifications. 
 

Clarity on changes to 
Adopted Policies Map 

P
age 84



 

 

 

Appendix B – Part B1 – changes to Housing Chapter 
 
The additional modifications include a large number of changes to Chapter 6.  To aid clarity, 
those modifications are set out in full below. 
 
 
 

Affordable Housing 
 

6.16 Housing Needs 
Meeting the needs of those in the Fareham area who cannot access the housing market 
is one of the key priorities of the Council and is an important objective for Welborne.  
Delivering new affordable housing is vital in achieving sustainable development and 
Welborne provides a rare opportunity for the Borough to deliver a significant number of 
affordable homes and to make a real contribution towards addressing the current backlog 
of housing need. 

  
6.17 Policy CS13 of the Core Strategy sets out the aim to achieve between 30% and 40% of 

all homes at Welborne as affordable homes and this was the starting point for the 
Welborne Plan.  Subsequently, up-to-date evidence on housing needs has been 
undertaken, initially by the Council3 and subsequently by PUSH through the South 
Hampshire Strategic Market Assessment (SHMA) and a target of 30% affordable housing 
has been confirmed.  The SHMA identified likely housing need within the Borough to 
2036, taking into account the role that lettings in the private rental sector play in meeting 
needs.  This evidence recommended an annual target for the whole Borough of 146 
additional affordable homes, which amounts to 3,358 by 2036.  Given that Welborne 
represents a majority of Fareham‟s planned housing delivery within this period, it is 
expected that a significant proportion of this target for affordable homes will be met at 
Welborne. 

  
6.18 Tenure, Housing Mix, Adaptability and Integration 

The SHMA also considered the proportions of new affordable homes that should be 
provided to meet varying levels of need and it recommended a tenure split of 70% 
affordable and social rented homes and 30% in „intermediate‟ forms of tenure, such as 
shared ownership homes.  Whilst this split will be appropriate in the early phases of 
development, it will need to be kept under review to ensure that tenures being provided 
meet the needs at the time each phase is built out and that phases of development 
remain viable. 

  
6.19 Housing Mix, Adaptability and Integration 

A wide range of affordable housing types and sizes will be required at Welborne to meet 
identified housing need.  Within each residential phase, the mix will need to provide 
homes suitable for families and for smaller households as well as homes suitable for 
vulnerable households, including those with reduced mobility.  Over the course of the 
Welborne development, a range of specialist needs housing should be provided as part 
of the affordable housing mix.  This will include specialised accommodation for older 
people and wheelchair accessible homes.  These requirements are covered in more 
detail in the following section below and in Policies WEL19 and WEL20. 

  
6.20 The SHMA considered an appropriate mix of affordable homes for Fareham, based on 

the latest available data on housing needs.  However, the long build-out period of 
Welborne means that this evidence provides only a starting point and the precise 
affordable housing mix required cannot be known at this stage.  Housing needs change 
over time and are also influenced by Government policies, such as welfare reforms.  

                                            
 
 
3 Fareham Borough Housing Needs Assessment (DTZ, August 2012) 

Page 85

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/housingneedsassessment.pdf


 

Therefore, the agreed mix of affordable homes provided within each residential phase will 
need to reflect the identified needs and viability at the that time the phase comes forward 
and will be agreed with the Council. 

  
6.21 In line with the requirement set out in the previous section for a proportion of market 

homes to be adaptable and to provide for those with reduced mobility, the providers of 
affordable housing at Welborne will also be expected to respond to this need.  Therefore, 
subject to need and viability, approximately 15% of all affordable homes within each 
residential phase should be designed and built to meet higher accessibility standards 
equivalent to the Lifetime Homes standards. 

  
6.22 To ensure the creation of a mixed, integrated and socially inclusive community, the 

affordable housing should be developed to the same design and construction standards 
as the market housing.  Affordable dwellings should be integrated with the market 
housing, taking account of the nature of the stock, the mix of tenures and the prevailing 
character of the different parts of Welborne, as set out in Chapter 4.  The level of 
integration will always be expected to fit within a range consistent with the upper and 
lower limits referred to below and set out in Policy WEL18.  For management purposes, it 
may be considered appropriate to cluster the affordable housing in small groups. 

  
6.23 Delivering Affordable Housing 

National planning policy requires that new development is deliverable and this means that 
the overall financial burden on new development, including obligations to deliver 
affordable housing, should not threaten its economic viability.4  Extensive viability testing 
has been undertaken on the proposals within this pPlan.  The outcome of this evidence is 
that there is potential to deliver a significant proportion of affordable homes, but that an 
overall target of 30% is likely to be the highest that the development as a whole could 
reasonably be expected to achieve.   

  
6.24 In coming to this conclusion, the viability evidence has taken into account separate 

studies5 which have sought to identify and secure additional and external funding for 
infrastructure and affordable housing at Welborne.  One significant outcome of this work 
is the Council‟s decision to participate in establishing of the potential delivery 
mechanisms which may assist viability is a jJoint vVenture hHousing cCompany (JVHC) 
that will may allow the Council and its partners to play a more central and active role in 
the delivery of affordable housing across the Borough potentially including Welborne.  
The nature of the role this JVHC will play at Welborne will be determined in dialogue with 
the principal landowners prior to the determination of the initial planning applications at 
Welborne.  If the opportunity arises to use the JVHC, or any other external funding, to 
help deliver a higher level of affordable housing than would be expected to result from the 
30% overall target, this will be positively and actively pursued by the Council. 

  
6.25 Notwithstanding the potential role of the JVHC, delivering the target level of 30% 

affordable homes each year will be a significant challenge given the overall infrastructure 
burden on the development and the length of time it will take to build the new community.  
Therefore, it is necessary for the Welborne Plan to consider how a flexible approach to 
the delivery of affordable homes could be required. 

  
6.26 Flexibility may be required, for example, where the proportion of affordable homes 

considered to be deliverable within the early phases of the development fell below the 
30% policy target, or proposed a different tenure split to the 70:30 envisaged in Policy 

                                            
 
 
4
 National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 173 (DCLG, March 2012) 

5
 These comprise the Welborne Infrastructure Funding Study (GVA, March 2013) as well as further 

commercially confidential work undertaken for the Council on options to support housing investment. 

Page 86

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/infrastructurefundingstrategy1.pdf


 

WEL18.  In line with the overall approach to development viability (see Chapter 10), the 
Council would expect such proposals to be fully justified by a robust and independently 
verified viability assessment.  Where the Council accepted a reduced percentage levels 
of affordable housing numbers delivery, there would also be a clear expectation that the 
affordable housing deficit would be „clawed back‟ rectified, preferably later within that 
same phase of development or, failing that, within a subsequent residential phase. 

  
6.27 Before accepting reduced levels of affordable housing delivery, the Council will initially 

consider whether some or all of the short-fall in affordable housing could be delivered by 
the JVHC.  Where this option proved not to be viable, feasible or desirable, the Council 
will apply its deferral of contributions policy as set out in WEL41 and expanded upon in 
the Welborne Planning Obligations SPD.6  In essence, this policy expects that, if market 
sales values increase significantly following an agreed reduction in affordable housing 
delivery, the increased development revenues would subsidise additional affordable 
housing provision within that phase of development.   

  
6.28 If it proves not to be viable or practical for the principal landowners to increase the level 

percentage of affordable housing provision within the same phase, then the Council will 
seek to ensure that the affordable housing deficit is rectified the „claw-back‟ within the 
subsequent phase of residential development.  Again, the The Council will initially 
consider the potential for the JVHC to deliver some or all of the short-fall, but failing that, 
will expect increased development revenues within that the next phase to subsidise the 
additional affordable housing.  In the latter case, expectations of additional provision for 
affordable housing would be subject to the overall priorities at that time for the use of 
deferred contributions where other infrastructure requirements had also been deferred on 
viability grounds. 

  
6.29 In cases where the affordable housing deficit claw-back is deferred to a subsequent 

phase and, at the start of that phase of development, the principal landowner considers 
that the provision of the additional affordable housing would not be financially viable, then 
the Council will expect this to be tested through a formal development valuation 
commissioned by the Council, at the developer‟s cost.  This valuation would take account 
of costs and revenues to date as well as the anticipated infrastructure requirements 
(including any other requirements deferred from previous phases) and the anticipated 
revenues for the following main phase.  Where it is agreed that both the normal target 
levels of provision and the additional claw-back provision to rectify a shortfall on the 
previous phase cannot be met, the Council will again consider whether it would be viable, 
feasible and desirable for the JVHC to deliver some of or the entire shortfall.  Failing this, 
the Council will re-employ its deferral of contributions policy. 

  
6.30 When applying any flexibility in the phasing and delivery of affordable housing it will be 

important not to undermine the principle of creating a mixed, integrated and socially 
inclusive community as set out above.  In practice, this means that lower and upper 
percentages of affordable housing will be set for any given phase of development at 
Welborne to avoid under provision or over-concentration in any one part of the 
development.  The minimum and maximum levels that will be acceptable within any given 
phase will be agreed with the Council.  However, overall, it is considered that a an 
absolute lower limit of 10% affordable housing numbers and an upper limit of 40% 
affordable housing numbers provide a reasonable balance between the need for flexibility 
and achieving the vision and objectives of the Welborne Plan. 

 
  

                                            
 
 
6
 The Welborne Planning Obligations SPD will be prepared during 2014 and will be adopted at the same time as 

the Welborne Plan in early 2015. 

Page 87



 

Appendix B – Part B2 – changes to Delivery Chapter 
 
The additional modifications include a large number of changes to Chapter 10.  To aid clarity, 
those modifications are set out in full below. 
 
 Deferral of Contributions 
10.36 The approach to ensuring development viability is set out in Chapter 1.  This emphasises 

that the Welborne Plan aims to ensure that necessary infrastructure (including affordable 
housing7) could be fully delivered at the time it was needed, as a fundamental 
requirement for achieving the vision for Welborne.  However, it also indicates that all parts 
of the Welborne Plan were underpinned by the principle of ensuring that a flexible 
approach would operate, where necessary, to allow for changes in development viability 
and to ensure that the development as a whole remained deliverable throughout the plan 
period. 

  
10.37 As part of this flexible approach, the Council is introducing a „deferral of contributions‟ 

policy that will apply only where necessary and justified by independently tested viability 
assessment.  In such circumstances, application of the policy will allow the deferral of 
some infrastructure requirements to be considered by the Council. 

  
10.38 In cases where the Council agrees to defer infrastructure, application of the deferral of 

contributions policy will seek the subsequent provision of any deferred contributions (or 
the delivery of the deferred infrastructure items) within the same main phase of the 
development.  If this cannot be achieved, as demonstrated by an independently tested 
viability assessment, then the deferred infrastructure contributions or provision will be 
sought in the following main phase, in addition to the „normal‟ requirements of that new 
phase. 

  
10.39 Where viability problems remain, a further independently tested viability assessment will 

be required to take account of previous and future costs and revenues, the „normal‟ 
infrastructure requirements of the new phase and any outstanding deferred infrastructure 
requirements.  This viability evidence will need to be submitted to the Council for 
agreement alongside initial planning applications for the new main phase.  Where the 
Council accepts the on-going viability constraints, the deferral of contributions policy will 
be re-employed as set out in the previous paragraph.  Where, despite deferral, an item of 
infrastructure remains unviable, the Council and site promoter will agree an alternative 
approach which does not require the specified infrastructure, to funding to ensure that 
infrastructure necessary to support the development can be delivered when it is required 
but which nevertheless achieves mitigation of the impacts of the development. This 
decision would be informed by an independently tested viability assessment. 

  
10.40 In all cases where more than one infrastructure item is being deferred as set out above, 

the Council will agree with any relevant infrastructure or service providers which of the 
deferred infrastructure items should be provided first as priority during that main phase of 
the development, should any claw-back of contributions be triggered by improving market 
and economic conditions. 

  

                                            
 
 
7
 Although this section refers primarily to „infrastructure‟ this should be read as including affordable housing 

requirements.  A detailed approach to how the deferral of contributions policy would apply to affordable housing 
is set out in Chapter 6. 

Page 88



 

10.41 The detailed guidance setting out how the deferral of contributions policy will be operated 
by the Council is set out within the Welborne Planning Obligations SPD.8 

  

                                            
 
 
8
 The Welborne Planning Obligations SPD will be produced during the course of 2014 and will be adopted by 

the Council at the same time as the Welborne Plan in early 2015. 

Page 89



 

Appendix B – Part B3 – changes to Monitoring and Review Chapter 
 
The additional modifications include a large number of changes to Chapter 11.  To aid clarity, 
those modifications are set out in full below. 
 
 The Monitoring Framework 

  

11.1 This chapter sets out how the Welborne Plan will be monitored following its adoption.  The 
mechanisms may be altered over the lifetime of the project, but nonetheless this chapter 
sets out the main principles by which monitoring will take place. 

  

11.2 The adopted Core Strategy contains a series of high level targets in relation to Policy 
CS13 which represent the essential components for the delivery of Welborne.  However 
these targets have required review and refinement in light of the technical evidence work 
and as such, the suite of detailed policies in the Welborne Plan to guide development will 
require new monitoring targets and indicators.  These will supplement the reviewed 
targets within the Core Strategy and together will form the monitoring framework for 
Welborne. 
Delivering the Welborne project depends upon the actions of a number of interested 
parties.  Therefore monitoring the Welborne project will require a coordinated and 
complimentary approach to be followed by the key agencies involved. 

  

11.3 The purpose of developing a monitoring framework is to provide a mechanism for 
assessing developmental progress of Welborne against the overall vision and objectives 
for the new community as set in the Welborne Plan.  This is of particular relevance where 
development targets are set within the policies of this plan, such as for the delivery of 
housing or employment space, or for the provision of specific community, education and 
recreation facilities.  However, it should be recognised that much of the finer detail will 
only come forward through the planning applications and the development management 
process over the lifetime of the project. 
A key asset for the Welborne project to date has been the Strategic Delivery Group, with 
active involvement of the following: 

 Site promoters 

 Fareham Borough Council 

 Hampshire County Council 

 Highways Agency 

 Homes and Communities Agency, and  

 Solent Local Enterprise Partnership.   
  

11.4 Implementing the policies in the Welborne Plan depends upon the actions of a number of 
interested parties and cannot be directly controlled.  Further detail on how the various 
parties are expected to contribute towards the overall delivery of Welborne can be found 
in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan. 
These organisations all have an interest in the delivery of a successful new community at 
Welborne.  The Group has provided an opportunity for the organisations to discuss the 
emerging proposals for Welborne, with a focus on delivery.  The governance 
arrangements will be reviewed over the lifetime of the project; nonetheless there will 
always be a role for a group to coordinate public and private sector action and investment.  
This will build upon both the body of technical work contained within the evidence base for 
the Welborne Plan, (e.g. the transport evidence), as well as the principle of coordinated 
investment set out in the Infrastructure Funding Strategy.   Specific tasks for this Group 
include identifying and agreeing key infrastructure spend and monitoring and reviewing 
infrastructure funding and cost. 

  

11.5 Monitoring the outcomes of the policies in the Welborne Plan will be undertaken on a 
regular basis to enable early action to be taken to overcome any barriers to delivery of the 

Page 90



 

plan‟s objectives and policies. 
The Phasing Plan contained within Chapter 10 of this document sets out the key 
outcomes and critical infrastructure identified for each of the main phases of development.  
This has been produced to inform the understanding of the Plan, using the best 
information available.  It should be recognised that the mechanism which will deliver 
Welborne, including critical infrastructure, will be the phasing plan, infrastructure delivery 
plan and s106 planning agreement approved alongside planning application(s) for the 
site.  Nonetheless, the phasing plan in Chapter 10 provides a useful guide to the Council‟s 
expected outcomes, including infrastructure. 

  

11.6 Where appropriate, Borough-wide targets which are monitored through the Council‟s 
Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) will be broken down and applied to the Welborne Plan 
area, so that the contribution of Welborne to Borough-wide targets can be seen on a local 
scale. 
Strategic Group meetings will be undertaken on a regular basis throughout the year to 
enable early action to be taken to overcome any barriers to delivery of the Plan‟s 
objectives and policies. Particular reference will be made to the key outcomes and critical 
infrastructure listed in the Phasing Plan in Chapter 10 of this Plan.  Any risk to the timely 
delivery of either will be reported as an entry in the Delivery Risk Register which will be 
created and reviewed at the Group meetings.  Given the wider public interest in the 
delivery of the Welborne project, it will be appropriate for changes in the Delivery Risk 
Register for Welborne to be reported to the Welborne Standing Conference as and when 
they arise and included in the Council‟s Authority Monitoring Report.  

  

11.7 Table 11.1 below lists all of the local indicators that will be monitored specifically for the 
Welborne Plan area. It should be noted that the quantities of development or provision are 
based on the assumption that 6,000 homes will be delivered at Welborne.  These 
quantities would need to rise or fall if a different number of homes are delivered. 
If an issue is identified where delivery of a key outcome or item of critical infrastructure for 
a phase may not be met, it will be for the Strategic Group to identify any contributory 
factor and identify necessary action to remedy the issue.  If a planning policy in the 
Welborne Plan is the issue (or a main contributing factor) then necessary amendments 
will be identified and if they require a change to a Plan policy, may trigger a review of the 
Welborne Plan.  Should any review of the Plan appear likely, then the Welborne Standing 
Conference will have a role in informing the priorities for any revision. 

  

11.8 Complimentary to the role of the Strategic Group, will be the ongoing monitoring of the 
outputs of the Plan by the Borough Council. The monitoring will cover a range of 
measures, both in terms of built form (homes delivered, floorspace built, etc.) as well as 
some quantifiable measures of what sort of place the new community is becoming (e.g. 
number of homeworkers, number of children of secondary school age, etc.).   

  

11.2 
11.9 

The adopted Core Strategy contains a series of high level targets in relation to Policy 
CS13 which represent the essential components for the delivery of Welborne. However 
these targets have required review and refinement in light of the technical evidence work 
and as such, the suite of detailed policies in the Welborne Plan to guide development will 
require new monitoring targets and indicators. These will supplement the reviewed targets 
within the Core Strategy and together will form the monitoring framework for the Welborne 
Plan. 

  

11.3 
11.10 

The purpose of developing a monitoring framework is to provide a mechanism for 
assessing developmental progress of Welborne against the overall vision and objectives 
for the new community as set in the Welborne Plan.  This is of particular relevance where 
development targets are set within the policies of this plan, such as for the delivery of 
housing or employment space, or for the provision of specific community, education and 
recreation facilities.  However, it should be recognised that much of the finer detail will 
only come forward through the planning applications and the development management 

Page 91



 

process over the lifetime of the project. 

  

11.11 Where appropriate, Borough-wide targets which are monitored through the Council‟s 
Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) will be broken down and applied to the Welborne Plan 
area so that the contribution of Welborne to Borough-wide targets can be seen on a local 
scale.  Given the wider public interest in the delivery of Welborne the progress against 
targets will be reported to the Standing Conference. 

  

11.12 Table 11.1 below lists indicators that will be monitored specifically for the Welborne Plan 
area.  It should be noted that these indicators and targets themselves will be subject to 
change over the lifetime of the project, to ensure that the overall framework provides a 
suitable mechanism for assessing the delivery of the Plan.  For instance, the mechanism 
and timetable of delivery of the schools will be fixed in section 106 planning agreements.  
Nonetheless, the following sets out the Council‟s commitment to indicate the built form 
outputs of the Plan and what type of place is being delivered. 

  

11.13 It will take a mixture of sources to monitor all of the outputs listed.  These will include 
buildings regulations information and residents surveys.  The monitoring of the framework 
set out below will be undertaken by the Council in liaison with the Community 
Development Officer to ensure that built form outputs and qualitative measures are 
captured. 

  

11.8 
11.14 

Monitoring of these indicators will establish the extent to which the vision for Welborne is 
being achieved. This will help to identify areas where further action is required from the 
Council or other agencies identified within the monitoring framework.  Taken together the 
targets and indicators provide a robust framework for assessing delivery of the plan.  
However, given the scale and the evolving nature of the project it is unlikely that failure to 
meet one target would indicate that the plan needs reviewing.  Should monitoring indicate 
that a phase of development was not delivering the overall vision and objectives of the 
Plan, the Council will consider the need to formally review the Welborne Plan.  The need 
for this review will be identified through the Authority‟s Monitoring Report. 

  

Table 11.1: Welborne Monitoring Indicators 

 

Indicator 
 

Target(s) Year 

Net increase in provision of B use class 
employment floorspace at Welborne 

60,000 sq. m. 2036 

Floorspace built   
Phase 1  1,000 sq. m 2015-2019 
Phase 2  4,860 sq. m. 2019-2022 
Phase 3  18,520 sq. m. 2022-2026 
Phase 4  10,650 sq. m. 2026-2030 
Phase 5  24,850 sq. m. 2030-2036 

No of jobs delivered at Welborne 5,735 2036 

Number of Borough residents developing 
relevant skills and finding employment in the 
development of Welborne 

 Ongoing 

Amount of retail space provided at the District 
Centre: 

  

 Supermarket (convenience) 1900-2500 sqm. (net) 2026 

 General A1 – A5 (comparison) 3600 sqm. (net)  

Provision of a multi-purpose main community hub 
centre at the District Centre (based on 6,000 
homes) 

1800 sqm. 2022 

Comprised of:   

Page 92



 

Indicator 
 

Target(s) Year 

 Community/art/culture space 1000 sqm.  

 Library space 227 sqm  

 Indoor sports space 400 sqm.  

 Safer Neighbourhood Police space 168 sqm.  

Provision of a Primary care centre at Welborne Space for 8 GP surgeries  2026 

Education provision at Welborne:   

 Nursery 1 180 sqm. 2019 

 Nursery 2 & 3 360 sqm. 2022 

 Nursery 4 & 5 360 sqm. 2026 

 Nursery 6 180 sqm. 2030 

 Nursery 7 180 sqm. 2036 

 Primary school 1 3FE 2019 

 Primary school 2 2FE 2026 

 Primary school 3 2FE 2030 

 Secondary school 7FE 2026 

Number of primary and secondary age children 
on site 

 Ongoing 

Number of net dwellings completed at Welborne 6000 dwellings  
(See table 11.2 below) 

2036 

Total number of new affordable dwellings 
delivered at Welborne  
(part of the total 6000 dwellings) 

1800 dwellings 2036 

Amount of Extra Care (or similar) housing for the 
elderly 

16 units 2036 

Average residential (internal) water consumption 
per person 

105 litres per person per day Ongoing 

Proportion of homes in each phase meeting the 
Lifetime Homes (or equivalent) standards 

15% of completions in each 
phase 

Ongoing 

Percentage of Custom build homes 1% of completions in each 
phase 

Ongoing 

Percentage of completed dwellings built to 
“Passivhaus” standards 

10% of completions in each 
phase 

Ongoing 

Amount of community play/ sports provision 
delivered at Welborne (based on 6,000 homes): 

See Table 4.7 of the Welborne 
IDP (Stage 2) Report 

 

 Artificial Grass Pitch  685 sqm. 2022 

 1 x Bowling Green 170 sqm. 2026 

 4 x Tennis Courts 670 sqm. per court 2022-2036 

 Local play space (0-11 ages) 3900 sqm. 
(maximum 13 spaces) 

From 2016 

 Neighbourhood play space (all ages) 3900 sqm.  
(maximum 8 spaces) 

From 2016 

 Youth play space (12+ ages) 2600 sqm.  
(maximum 13 spaces) 

From 2016 

 Play space equipment 42 pieces From 2016 

Additional amount of public open space delivered 
at Welborne (based on 6,000 homes): 

See Table 4.6 of the Welborne 
IDP (Stage 2) Report 

 

 Parks & amenity space 1.5ha per, 1,000 population Ongoing 

 Allotments 0.13ha per 1,000 population Ongoing 

 Sports & Playing pitches (including shared 
school provision) 

1.2 ha per, 1,000 population Ongoing 

 On-site semi-natural green space 3ha per 1,000 population Ongoing 

 SANGS (both on and off-site) Sufficient SANGS provided in 
agreement with Natural 

Ongoing 

Page 93



 

Indicator 
 

Target(s) Year 

England to support each 
phase of development in place 
before development 

Transport infrastructure delivered at Welborne:   
BRT At least three BRT buses an 

hour to serve the site. 
2019 

 
BRT Full on-site routing for BRT 2026 
M27 Junction 10 upgrades Junction 10 upgraded to all-

moves 
2022 

Modal split for transport to/from Welborne – 
mode for travel to work 

 Ongoing 

Pedestrian and cycle links:   
Fareham - Wickham 
Welborne – Whiteley 

100% 2022 
 

Proportion of commercial and community 
development covered by Travel Plans 

 Ongoing 

  
Table 11.2: Target Housing Completions  
 

Year 
 

Target completions Target cumulative  
completions 

 

2016/17 120 120 
2017/18 180 300 
2018/19 200 500 
2019/20 320 820 
2020/21 340 1160 
2021/22 340 1500 
2022/23 340 1840 
2023/24 340 2180 
2024/25 340 2520 
2025/26 340 2860 
2026/27 340 3200 
2027/28 340 3540 
2028/29 340 3880 
2029/30 340 4220 
2030/31 340 4560 
2031/32 340 4900 
2032/33 280 5180 
2033/34 280 5460 
2034/35 280 5740 
2035/36 260 6000 

 
Triggers for a Review 

 
  

Page 94



 

Appendix C 

(see Appendix D for colour versions of maps) 

Welborne Policies Map, as amended by Main Modification MM9 

Page 95



 

 

 

Welborne Strategic Framework Diagram, As Amended by Main Modification MM9 

 

P
age 96



 

 

 

 
Appendix D  

 

Technical note from Urban Edge consultants 

 

Page 97





 

Technical Note 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

Project SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications Date January 2015 

Note Second Addendum Ref UE-0115 

Author NP Page 1 of 7 

    

1. Introduction 

This technical note forms a second Addendum to the combined Sustainability Appraisal (SA) / Strategic 

Environmental Assessment (SEA), and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), for the Fareham Borough 

Local Plan Part 3:  The Welborne Plan.  Readers of this note are referred to the following documents for 

more detailed information about the assessment processes, and which support the information contained in 

this note: 

 The Submission Draft Welborne Plan (June 2014): 

o http://www.fareham.gov.uk/pdf/planning/WelborneCoreDocuments/SD01_Welborne_Subm

ission_Plan.pdf  

 SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan:  Addendum (June 2014): 

o http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/CD-03a_CouncilResponse_Addendum.pdf  

 The Sustainability Report for the Publication Draft Welborne Plan (January 2014): 

o http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/Publication-Welborne-SA-

Combined.pdf  

 The Habitats Regulations Assessment Report for the Publication Draft Welborne Plan (January 2014): 

o http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/Final-HRA-Report.pdf  

The purpose of the Second Addendum is to provide the information necessary under the SA/SEA and HRA 

to accompany consultation on Main Modifications which the Council is proposing to make to the Welborne 

Plan in response to the issues discussed during the Examination in Public. 

There are 23 proposed Main Modifications (MM) in total, comprising changes to policy and significant 

changes to supporting text, including changes that the Council proposes in response to concerns raised by 

representations made at Examination hearing sessions.   

Section 2 of this Addendum presents a High Level Assessment of the Main Modifications against the SA 

Objectives.  Section 3 presents an HRA screening assessment of the Main Modifications.  Section 4 

concludes the Addendum.  Changes to the Policies Map and Strategic Framework Diagram resulting from 

the Main Modifications are shown at Annexes 1 and 2, respectively. 

Page 99

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/pdf/planning/WelborneCoreDocuments/SD01_Welborne_Submission_Plan.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/pdf/planning/WelborneCoreDocuments/SD01_Welborne_Submission_Plan.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/CD-03a_CouncilResponse_Addendum.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/Publication-Welborne-SA-Combined.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/Publication-Welborne-SA-Combined.pdf
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/new_community/Final-HRA-Report.pdf


Technical Note:  SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications - Addendum Page 2 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

2. Proposed Main Modifications SA/SEA 

The results of the High Level Assessment for the proposed Main Modifications are illustrated at Annex 3, and 

a brief commentary follows. 

MM3 is predicted to have a minor positive effect on SA3 (Landscape) by strengthening policy requirements 

in relation to settlement buffers. 

MM4 is predicted to have a minor positive effect on SA6 (Air, Water, Light and Noise Pollution) by 

strengthening policy protection against noise, light and air pollution. 

MM5 is predicted to have minor positive effects on SA4 (Accessibility), SA9 (Economy and Accessible Jobs) 

and SA11 (Health and Safety) by strengthening policy requirements on maximising opportunities to prioritise 

pedestrian and cyclist movement across the A32. 

MM10 is predicted to have a minor positive effect on SA1 (Housing), especially sub-criterion SA1a 

(Affordable Housing), by clarifying the overall proportion of affordable housing and the requirement for each 

phase to deliver at least 10% affordable housing. 

MM15 is predicted to have a minor negative effect on SA11d by reducing the requirement for allotment 

provision, thereby decreasing opportunities to gain access to locally-produced fresh food. 

MM16 is predicted to have minor positive effects on SA3 (Landscape) and to a lesser extent SA2 (Heritage) 

by strengthening policy requirements on structural landscaping. 

MM18 is predicted to have minor positive effects on SA6 (Air, Water, Light and Noise Pollution) and SA8 

(Natural Resources) and to a lesser extent SA7 (Biodiversity) by strengthening policy requirements on waste 

water conveyance and treatment infrastructure. 

MM19 is predicted to have minor positive effects on SA5 (Climate Change Adaptation), SA6 (Air, Water, 

Light and Noise Pollution) and SA7 (Biodiversity) by strengthening policy requirements on flood risk 

assessment, and the design, delivery and management of Sustainable Drainage Systems. 

MM20 is predicted to have minor positive effects on SA8 (Natural Resources) by strengthening policy 

requirements on the provision of a new Household Waste and Recycling Centre. 

All other proposed Main Modifications are predicted to have a neutral effect on the SA Objective because 

they either provide additional clarification on the meaning of policy or supporting text, or do not materially 

alter the location, duration or magnitude of previous assessment conclusions. 

3. Proposed Main Modifications HRA 

The results of the Screening Assessment for the proposed Main Modifications are illustrated at Annex 4.  No 

additional likely significant effects are predicted to result from any of the Main Modifications. 

Page 100



Technical Note:  SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications - Addendum Page 3 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

4. Conclusion 

Overall the proposed Main Modifications are not considered to significantly alter the findings of the SA/SEA 

for the Welborne Plan, as reported in the Sustainability Report (January 2014).  Whilst one minor negative 

effect is predicted under SA11 in relation to allotment provision, the reason for this change is to correct an 

error in the plan rather than a fundamental change in policy ambition.  All other Main Modifications are 

predicted to have neutral or minor positive effects on the SA Objectives. 

It is not considered that the proposed Main Modifications would significantly change the overall assessment 

of the Welborne Plan against the Conservation Objectives of Special Areas of Conservation, Special 

Protection Areas, or Ramsar sites, as reported in the HRA Report (January 2014).   

 

 

 

Page 101



Technical Note:  SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications - Addendum Page 4 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

Annex 1:  Revised Welborne Policies Map 

 

Page 102



Technical Note:  SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications - Addendum Page 5 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

Annex 2:  Revised Welborne Strategic Framework Diagram 

Page 103



Technical Note:  SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications - Addendum Page 6 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

Annex 3:  SA/SEA High Level Assessment Findings 

Please see insert. 

Page 104



SA1 SA2 SA3 SA4 SA5 SA6 SA7 SA8 SA9 SA10 SA11

Main Modifications

MM1 Supporting Text:  Page 8, Paragraph 1.29 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM2 Policy WEL2:  Page 20, insert new 1st bullet, amend 6th  bullet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM3 Policy WEL5:  Page 38-39, insert clarification text to policy 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM4 Policy WEL6:  Pages 44-45, insert additional criterion 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0

MM5 Policy WEL6:  Pages 44-45, amend criterion iii 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 + 0 +

MM6 Policy WEL7:  Pages 46-47, revisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM7 Supporting Text:  Page 54, Paragraph 5.17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM8
Policy WEL10:  Page 61,  revision to 6th paragraph
Policy WEL11:  Page 63,  revision to 4th paragraph

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM9
Policy WEL16:  Page 74, final choice of secondary school location (as assessed
in First Addendum)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM10 Policy WEL18:  Page 81, revisions + 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM11 Policy WEL23Policy WEL23:  Page 92,  revise item iii 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM12 Supporting Text:  Page 94, Paragraph 7.24 - 1st sentence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM13 Supporting Text:  Pages 94-95, Paragraph 7.27 – list item 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM14 Policy WEL25:  Page 97,  revise 1st sentence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM15
Policy WEL29:  Page 106,  revise table from 0.34ha to 0.13ha (allotment
provision per 1,000 residents)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -

MM16 Policy WEL33:  Page 114, new 2nd paragraph 0 + + 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Welborne Plan:  Main Modifications
High Level Assessment January 2015

SA Objectives

UE-0115 Welborne Modifications HLA_1_150108 Main-Mods 1 / 2

P
age 105



SA1 SA2 SA3 SA4 SA5 SA6 SA7 SA8 SA9 SA10 SA11

Welborne Plan:  Main Modifications
High Level Assessment January 2015

SA Objectives

MM17 Policy WEL36:  Page 117, amend criterion ii 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM18 Policy WEL37:  Page 120, clarification amendments 0 0 0 0 0 + + + 0 0 0

MM19 Policy WEL39:  Page 123, revisions 0 0 0 0 + + + 0 0 0 0

MM20 Policy WEL40:  Page 125, HWRC to west of A32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0

MM21 Supporting Text:  Page 126-129, Paragraphs 10.6 – 10.23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM22 Policy WEL41:  Page 133, revisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MM23 Supporting Text:  Pages 138, Paragraphs 11.5 - 11.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Key to the High Level Assessment Matrix
++ Likely strong positive effect
+ Likely positive effect
0 Neutral/no effect
- Likely adverse effect
-- Likely strong adverse effect

+/-/? Uncertain effects
SA Objectives

1 To provide good quality and sustainable housing for all
2 To conserve and enhance built and cultural heritage
3 To conserve and enhance the character of the landscape
4 To promote accessibility and encourage travel by sustainable means
5 To minimise carbon emissions at the new community and promote adaptation to climate change
6 To minimise air, water, light and noise pollution affecting the new community
7 To conserve and enhance biodiversity
8 To conserve and manage natural resources (water, land, minerals, agricultural land, materials)
9 To strengthen the local economy and provide accessible jobs available to residents of the new community

10 To create vital and viable new centres which complement existing centres
11 To create a healthy and safe new community

UE-0115 Welborne Modifications HLA_1_150108 Main-Mods 2 / 2

P
age 106



Technical Note:  SA/SEA and HRA for the Welborne Plan Modifications - Addendum Page 7 

 January 2015 

 UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108 

Annex 4:  HRA Screening Findings 

Please see insert. 

 

Page 107



Main Modifications

MM1 Supporting Text:  Page 8, Paragraph 1.29 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM2 Policy WEL2:  Page 20, insert new 1st bullet, amend 6th  bullet A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM3 Policy WEL5:  Page 38-39, insert clarification text to policy A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3

MM4 Policy WEL6:  Pages 44-45, insert additional criterion A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2

MM5 Policy WEL6:  Pages 44-45, amend criterion iii A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM6 Policy WEL7:  Pages 46-47, revisions A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM7 Supporting Text:  Page 54, Paragraph 5.17 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM8
Policy WEL10:  Page 61,  revision to 6th paragraph
Policy WEL11:  Page 63,  revision to 4th paragraph

A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM9 Policy WEL16:  Page 74, final choice of secondary school location (as assessed in First Addendum) A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4

MM10 Policy WEL18:  Page 81, revisions A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM11 Policy WEL23Policy WEL23:  Page 92,  revise item iii A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM12 Supporting Text:  Page 94, Paragraph 7.24 - 1st sentence A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM13 Supporting Text:  Pages 94-95, Paragraph 7.27 – list item 1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM14 Policy WEL25:  Page 97,  revise 1st sentence A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM15 Policy WEL29:  Page 106,  revise table from 0.34ha to 0.13ha (allotment provision per 1,000 residents) A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM16 Policy WEL33:  Page 114, new 2nd paragraph A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3 A3

MM17 Policy WEL36:  Page 117, amend criterion ii A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM18 Policy WEL37:  Page 120, clarification amendments A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2

MM19 Policy WEL39:  Page 123, revisions A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2

B
ut

se
r

H
ill

R
iv

er
It

ch
en

Welborne Plan:  Main Modifications Screening Assessment

Ramsar

Th
e

N
ew

Fo
re

st

So
le

nt
an

d
So

ut
ha

m
p

to
n

W
at

er

SAC

Th
e

N
ew

Fo
re

st

So
le

nt
M

ar
iti

m
e

So
le

nt
an

d
Is

le
o

fW
ig

ht
La

g
o

o
ns

SPA

Th
e

N
ew

Fo
re

st

So
le

nt
an

d
So

ut
ha

m
p

to
n

W
at

er

Po
rt

sm
o

ut
h

H
ar

b
o

ur

C
hi

ch
es

te
r

an
d

La
ng

st
o

ne
H

ar
b

o
ur

s

Po
rt

sm
o

ut
h

H
ar

b
o

ur

C
hi

ch
es

te
r

an
d

La
ng

st
o

ne
H

ar
b

o
ur

s

UE-0115 Welborne Modifications HRA_1_150108 Main-Mods 1 / 2

P
age 108



B
ut

se
r

H
ill

R
iv

er
It

ch
en

Welborne Plan:  Main Modifications Screening Assessment

Ramsar

Th
e

N
ew

Fo
re

st

So
le

nt
an

d
So

ut
ha

m
p

to
n

W
at

er

SAC

Th
e

N
ew

Fo
re

st

So
le

nt
M

ar
iti

m
e

So
le

nt
an

d
Is

le
o

fW
ig

ht
La

g
o

o
ns

SPA

Th
e

N
ew

Fo
re

st

So
le

nt
an

d
So

ut
ha

m
p

to
n

W
at

er

Po
rt

sm
o

ut
h

H
ar

b
o

ur

C
hi

ch
es

te
r

an
d

La
ng

st
o

ne
H

ar
b

o
ur

s

Po
rt

sm
o

ut
h

H
ar

b
o

ur

C
hi

ch
es

te
r

an
d

La
ng

st
o

ne
H

ar
b

o
ur

s

MM20 Policy WEL40:  Page 125, HWRC to west of A32 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4 A4

MM21 Supporting Text:  Page 126-129, Paragraphs 10.6 – 10.23 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM22 Policy WEL41:  Page 133, revisions A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

MM23 Supporting Text:  Pages 138, Paragraphs 11.5 - 11.6 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1 A1

Assessment Key
Category A: No negative effect

A1 Options / policies that will not themselves lead to development e.g. because they relate to design or other qualitative criteria for development, or they are not a land use planning policy.
A2 Options / policies intended to protect the natural environment, including biodiversity.
A3 Options / policies intended to conserve or enhance the natural, built or historic environment, where enhancement measures will not be likely to have any negative effect on a European Site.
A4 Options / policies that positively steer development away from European sites and associated sensitive areas.
A5 Options / policies that would have no effect because development is implemented through later policies in the same plan, which are more specific and therefore more appropriate to assess for their effects on European Sites.

Category B: No significant effect
B Options / policies that could have an effect, but the likelihood is there would be no significant negative effect on a European site either alone or in combination with other elements of the same plan, or other plans or projects.

Category C: Likely significant effect alone
C1 The option, policy or proposal could directly affect a European site because it provides for, or steers, a quantity or type of development onto a European site, or adjacent to it.
C2 The option / policy could indirectly affect a European site e.g. because it provides for, or steers, a quantity or type of development that may be ecologically, hydrologically or physically connected to it or increase disturbance.
C3 Proposals for a magnitude of development that, no matter where it was located, the development would be likely to have a significant effect on a European site.
C4 An option / policy that makes provision for a quantity / type of development but the effects are uncertain because its detailed location is to be selected following consideration of options in a later, more specific plan.
C5 Options / policies for developments or infrastructure projects that could block alternatives for the provision of other development in the future, that may lead to adverse effects on European sites, which would otherwise be avoided.
C6 Options, policies or proposals which are to be implemented in due course - if implemented in one or more particular ways, the proposal could possibly have a significant effect on a European site.
C7 Any other options, policies or proposals that would be vulnerable to failure under the Habitats Regulations at project assessment stage; to include them in the plan would be regarded by the EC as ‘faulty planning’.
C8 Any other proposal that may have an adverse effect on a European site, which might try to pass the tests of HRA at project level by arguing that the plan provides IROPI to justify its consent despite a negative assessment.

Category D: Likely significant effects in combination
D1 The option, policy or proposal alone would not be likely to have significant effects but if its effects are combined with the effects of other policies within the same plan the cumulative effects would be likely to be significant.
D2 Options, policies or proposals that alone would not be likely to have significant effects but if their effects are combined with the effects of other plans or projects, the combined effects would be likely to be significant.
D3 Options or proposals that are, or could be, part of a programme or sequence of development delivered over a period, where the implementation of the later stages could have a significant effect on European sites.
? Uncertain effects - take forward to Appropriate Assessment.

UE-0115 Welborne Modifications HRA_1_150108 Main-Mods 2 / 2

P
age 109




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	10(1) Minutes of meeting Monday, 5 January 2015 of Executive
	11(1) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 17 December 2014 of Planning Committee
	12 Welborne Plan Proposed Modifications
	ACO-150108-UE-0115 Welborne Modifications SA-HRA Addendum2_1_150108


